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Chirag R. Shah & Associates

Chartered Accountants

To the Members of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

' We have audited the accompanying Standaione financial statem_erits of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
{“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March-31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the

" Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements,
‘including a-summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “Financial Statement”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and -according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
-amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the indian
accounting Stanidards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the companies (_lndiah Accounting
standards) Rules,2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Compény as at March 31, 2025, its Profit/Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, its Cash Flows and the Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date_l S

“Basis for bpinio'n

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
“are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. ‘

‘Key Audit Matt_ers.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professiona! judgment, were of most significance in our

audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters
“were addressed in the context of'ou.r audit of the standalone financiai statements as a wholé, and in

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
_below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

'We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

report. We have fulfilied the responsibilities described in the' Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

" standalone financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,

* our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of

“material misstatement of the standalone financial statements. The results .of our audit procedures,

o including the 'proéedures perforrried to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opini'on
on the accompanying standalone financial statements. ' ‘ '
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Sr.

No Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key'audit matter

e Evaluated the design, * implementation, and operating
effectiveness of key controls over the ECL modeling process.

o Verifi ed the criteria appiied by the management for staging and
tested the compieteness and accuracy of the data inputs used

e “Assessed the assumptions regardlng probability of default, loss
given default, and forward-looking information, - including
macroeconomlc variables incorporated in the ECL model..

1 ‘Impairment of Loans

and Advances

. Performéd_indepen,de_nt recalculations on a sample basis to verify
the accuracy of the computation of expected credit losses.

e Examined the adequacy of the financial statement disclosures as
required under Ind AS 107 and ind AS 108.

e Assessed the Company's accounting policies relating - to
derecognition of financial assets and evaluated their compliance
with Ind AS 102 and RBI guidelines.

e Tested on a sample basis the sale and assignment transactions to
‘verify whether the conditions for derecognition were.
appropriately assessed and met.

. Reviewed transaction documentation such- as assignment
agreements, s sale deeds, and servicing agreements to evaluate the
transfer of risks and rewards and loss of control. o

2. Sale or Assignment of
" Financial Assets

« Evaluated the recognition of gains.or losses on-derecagnition of
financial assets and checked the approprrateness of disclosures in
the financial statements

s Assessed compliance with RBI's Master Drrectrons on Transfer of
Loan Exposures for NBFCs and checked reporting to regulators
where applicable.

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

‘The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparatlon of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in. the Management Discussion and Analysis, Boards
Report including Annexures to Board Reports, Business Responsibility Report, corporate governance and
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Report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connéctiorj with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
-financial statéments or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
" misstated. .

'If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

. Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors s responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
 Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, change in cash fiows and changes in equity of the Company
in-accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards {Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility alsoincludes maintenance of
. adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of.
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and a_pplicatiori of
appropriate ‘ imptementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for. ensuring the accuracy and compieteness of the
_.'accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud.or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting uniess management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic aiternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial ‘r'eporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether_'the standalone financial statements as

~ awhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s

- report.that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

" Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements. -

As part of an-audit_ in accordance with SAs, we exercise pr_olfessi'ona_l judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

» Identify and assess the risks of materia! mjsstatement of the standalone financia! statements, whether
. due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
~ evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud ma'y
-involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of’ internal
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control.

- Obtain an understanding of internai control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system
in.place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies -used and the reasanableness of accou!nting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
‘based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists reiated to events or
- c_:onditions that'mav cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our. auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conciusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to-
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. ST

« Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (1) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scape
“and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit. i

We also provide those:charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requiréments regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on-our independence, and where applicable, related-
safeguards. '

from the matters communicated with those charged with govérnance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
_consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
© communication. . '

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1,7, As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central -

' Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143. of the Companies Act 2013, we give
in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable. '

Jo 2. _Aé required by Section 143(_3) of the Act, wé repori that:
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We have sought and obtained all the informanndexlnaios
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss inciuding Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account. '

in our -dpinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 Companies (Indian Ac_cou'nting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. C '

on _t-'he' basis of the written fepresentations received from the directors a_s-bh March 31, 2025 taiien
onrecord by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”. Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

In eur opinibn and according to the information and explanations given to us, fhe remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act. The remurieration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid
down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other
details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11

- of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and_tb the best of

our information and according to the explanations given to us:

e  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

i The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derlvative contracts for which

there were any material foréseeable losses '

jil. - There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

_Protection Fund by the Company

iv. The ménagement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
" as disclosed in the note 57(8){A) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been
"advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium-or any other

sources or kind of funds) by the company to or.in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Inter'mediar'ies"),- with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, di'rectly or indirectly lend or invest in pther
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(“Ultimate ‘Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries '

+
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v. The management has represented that, to the best of its k nowledge and belief 7 than
as disclosed ‘in'the note 57{8){A} to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been -
received by the company from any person(s) or -entity(ies), including foreign entities
{“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified .in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {"Ultimate
Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

vi. Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause {a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

Vii." No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Compan'y. ‘

viii.  Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has operated.
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. ‘Further,.during
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
fampered with. '

For, Chirag R Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: #118791W

Chirag R Shah
Partner :
Membership No.: 106139
UDIN : 25106139BMUIZD6444
Place : Mumbai

‘Date : May 02, 2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
" OF EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE LIMITED ‘

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 Under the Heading “Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements”
of Our Report of Even Date) C ' : '

al
A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and location of property, piant and equipment for the year..

B} The Company has maintained proper records s'howing' full particulars including
- guantitative details and location of intangible assets.

b) - According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of
the records, the company has carried out physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment at reasonable intervals during the year. No material discrepancies were noticed on

_such verification.

¢} According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable
_properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements
are duly executed in favour of the lessee}, are heid in the name of the Company.

.d} The compény has neither revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment’s (including Right of Use
assets) nor intangible assets or both during the year. . :

e) As per the information and ekplanat‘ion pr'o'vided to us, no proceedings have been initiated or
are pending against the: company for. holding any Benami Property under the ‘Benami
Transactions {Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)' and rules made thereunder.

a} The Company business does not i_nvolve Inventories and, accordingly, the requirements undér
* paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b_) Accordi'ng to the information and explanations given to us, the company has availed working

capital limits from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The guarterly statements
filed by the company aré in agreement with the books of accounts.

jii. - , _
a) - As per the information and explanations given to us, the principal businéss of the companyis

" to give loans and hence clause iii(a) of the order is not applicable.

b} ' As'pgr the information and explanations given to us, _thé,'investments made and loans provided
by the company, are not prejudicial to the company's interest;

' Company has not given any guarantees, security, and advances in the nature of loans.

€} In respect of the loans/advances in nature of loan, granted by the company as part of its
business, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated

T
A4
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by the Company. Having regard to the voluminous. nature of foan transactions, it
practicable furnish entity-wise details of amount, due date of repayment or receipt and the
extent of delay {as suggested in the Guidance Note on CARO 2020, issued by the institute of
Chartered Accountants of india for the reporting undet this clause) in this report, in respect of
ipans and advances which were not repaid/paid when they are due or were repaid/paid with
a delay, in the normal course of lending business. -

0 v]

“Further, except for those instances where there are delays or defauits in repayment of
principal and/or interést as at the balance sheet date, in respect of which the Company has
disclosed asset classification/staging of loans in Note 11,2 to the Standalone Financial
Statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) and the guidelines issued
‘by the Reserve Bank of India, the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated,
and are also regular in payment of interest, as applicable.

d] Inrespect of the loahs/ad_\iances in nature of loans, the total amount overdue for more than
ninety days (including cases classified as non-performing asset (NPA) as per RBI guidelines) as
at March 31, 2025 and the details of the number of such cases, are disclosed in Note 11.2 to
' the Standalone Financial Statements. In such instances, in our opinion, reasonable steps have -
‘been by the Company for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest.

e} In our opinion and based on the information and explanation given to us, the company isin
“the business of giving loans, hence this clause is not applica_ble.

f) -According to the information and explanation given to us, the compan'y has not granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying

any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are noloans, investments, guarantees

" and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Com panies Act 2013

are applicable and hence not commenied upon.

“In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company-has not

accepted any deposits or the amounts deemed to be deposit as per the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed. Accordingly,

“paragraph 3{v) of the order is not applicable to the company.

The provisions of maintenance of cost recbrds under sub-section (1) of section 148.of the Companies

Act, 2013 are not appiicable to the company, as it is engaged'in the business of provi_ding loans;

a) ' According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the records of the
" Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing with
the_apprdpriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Providént Fund, Employees
'-‘Stat'e Insurance, Income-tax, Goods. and Service Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues,

. wherever applicable. The provisions relating to duty of excise, duty of custom, sales tax, value
added tax, and service tax are not applicable to the Company. According to the information.
and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of aforesaid dues

- were outstanding as at March 31,2025 for a period of more than 6 months from the date they ~

" became payable. T : :

" b) Accdrding to the information and explanations givén to us, there were no dues in re‘spect' of
. Income Tax, duty of Excise, duty of Customs, Sales Tax; Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax and.
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value Added Tax which have not been deposited on- account of any dispute except
- for-the following: '

Name of the Amt. (Rs. | Period to which the Forum where the

Nature of Dues

. statue in million} amount relates: dispute is pending
| GSTAct ITC Reversal Q.61 2017-18 Appellate Authority |
GST Act ITC Reversal 0.43 2017-18 Appellate Authority |
GST Act ITC Reversal 4.95 | 2018-19 Appellate Authority
GST Act ITC Reversal 3.75 2017-18 Appellate Authority
_ GSTAct [TC Reversal 1.39 2018-19 Appellate Authority
 GSTAct.  |ITC Reversal 0.15. 2019-20 Appellate Authority |
GST Act {TC Reversal  0.89 .. 2018-19 - Appellate Authority.
- Disallowance of Employees’ - ‘Appellate Authority
._-ncF)me Tax Act contribution to PF/ESI 2.05 2018-19 ‘ )
‘Income Tax-Act | Short TDS Credit 0.40 2018-19 Appellate Authority |
tncome Tax Act | Penalty appeal 0.39 2020-21 _Appellate Authority |
Income Tax Act | Addition U/s. 69A of the Act 10.00 2021-22 Appellate Authority
Income Tax Act | Short TDS Credit 145.65 2021-22 Appellate Authority
I income Tax Act | Short TDS Credit 14.82 2022-23 Appellate Authority
“income Tax Act | Short TDS Credit | 14.16 2024-25 Appellate Authority

vili. According to the information and explanations given to.us, no transactions or income, not recorded in
the books of account, have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

a) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has
not defaulted in repayments of dues from any lender during the year. : )

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company' is not declared as
willful defauiter by any bank or Financial institution or any lender. ’

‘c) - In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
. management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

_ d).. According to the information and explanation given to us, the funds raised on short term basis
have not been utilized for lang-term purposes

e} The Company does not have any'SUbsidiaries, associates or joint véntures-and Hence clause
ix(e) of the order is not applicabl_e. ' ’

f) The Company does not have any subsidiariés, associates or joint ventures and hence clause
" ix(f) of the order is not applicable. '

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
-records of the Company, the company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer
or further public offer during the year. Hence the reporting requirement under clause 3(x)(a).
is not applicable to the company. ' ' .

1801, Yash Ci i = i :
9 ash Anant, Opp. City Gold Cinema, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad - 380 014.F8 079-46042121]] 9898213633 ) chirag_shah1973@yahoo.co.in



Chirag R. Shah & Associates

Chartered Accountants

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
records of the Company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertibie debentures (fully, partially or optionaily convertible) during
the year. Hence the reporiing requiremént .under clause 3{xj(b) is not
applicabie to the company.

xi. _
a}  According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud on or by the company, by
its officers and employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

‘b} According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, .no report U/s
143({12) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by secretarial auditor, or by us in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government. ‘

c) Accordingto the information and explanation givén-t_o us, no whistle-blower complaints have
‘been received during the year by the company. '

xil. .In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(xii)(a} to
‘ - 3{xii)({c)of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records of
. the Company, the transactions entered with related parties are in compliance with provisions of
section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of such transactions are disclosed in

the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. ' '

Xiv.
a} According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has an-internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. ‘-

b) ' The reports of the Internal Auditors-of the company issued till date for thé period under audit
" were considered by us. ' -

xv.  Inour opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of records of the Company, the Company during the year has not entered into any hon-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with thé directors covered under the provisions

of sec 192 of the Act and accordingly the provisions of clause (xv) of the Order are not applicable to
- the Company. P ’

L xi. o
- a) Inour opinion, the Company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the RBI Act,
: 1934 (2 of 1934} and accordingly the registration certificate is obtained by the Company.

b) ‘According to the information and:éxplanation given to us, the company has not conducted
Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration
(CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

c) . According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not a- Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBI. Hence the clause
3(xvi}{c) of the Report is not applicable.
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d) According to the information and explanation given to us, there is one Cere investment
Company. ‘(CtC) as part of the group.

' "xvii.' . According to'the ihfprmation'and-exp!a-naﬁon given to us, the.company has not incurred cash losses
' during the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year: o

xviii',,_ There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year and accordingly, the reporting
-requirement under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xix.  According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
. and expected dates of realization of financial- assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
Infermation accompanying the financial statements, and our knowledge of the BOD and management
" plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report and
. that_éompany is capable of meeting its liabilities existing as at the date of balance sheet as and When

they fall due within a period of 1 year from the balance sheet date. '

XX.

a) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no unspent amount in
respect of other than ongoing projects which are required tobe transferred toa Fund specified
in Schedule 7 to the Companies Act, within a period of 6 months of the expiry of the financial
year in compliance with secand proviso to Sec 135{&) of the said Act. -

b} According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no unspent amount in
respect of .ongoing’ project which are required to be transferred to special account in
compliance with the provision under section 135(6) of the said Act. |

3 : *xi. - The Compa‘ny'is'not required to prepare consolidated financial statement and hen“ce the provisions of
clause of 3(21) is not applicable.

For, Chirag R Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants -
. Firm Reg. No.: #118791W

" _Pariner | ‘
Membership No.: 106133
UDIN: 25106139BMIIZD6444

~ Place : Mumbai '
Date : May 02; 2025

T PN
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Chartered Accountants

Annexure-B to the Independent Auditor’s: Report on Standaione IND AS Financial Statements of
EDELWEISS RETAIL F]NANCE LIMATED

. {Referred toin paragiaph 1 [f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report
of even date} '

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial reporting under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) ‘ ' '

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial r_e_borting of EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE
LIMITED-("the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
pased on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
‘essential components of internal contro! stated'in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
_ Over Financial Reporting {the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
{“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
. business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the.accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
* requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
" internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and. maintained and if such controls

©  operated effectively in all material respects. ' ' ‘ .

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about thé_ adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controis with reference to financial statement included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness. of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standatone financial statements, whether due to
fraud orerror. - ’ o o

We believe that the audit evidence we have obta'in'ed'is sufficient and appropria‘t'e_ to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

‘Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A Company's internal ﬂnanciél controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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Chartered Accountants

- statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted ‘accounting principles. A
_Company's-internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
‘procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; {2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally. accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are.
‘being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the'Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financiai statements.-

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

. Because -of the inherent limitations of internal financiai controls with reference to these financial
-s-tate_ments,Tincluding'the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, ma'terial
_ misstaternents due to.error or fraud may occur and not be detec_:teb]. Also, projections of any evaluation of
___the.internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in-conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

- deteriorate. | ' : .

‘Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the expianations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and

such internal financia! controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by 1CAl.

. :For Chirag R Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants -
ICA! Firm Reg. No.; #118791W

Chi ,
Partner - -
~ . Membership No.: 106139
~UDIN i 25106139BMIZD6444
. Place : Mumbai
. Date : May 02,2025
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

1.

3.

Corporate Information:

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (‘ERFL’ or ‘the Company’) is a public limited company domiciled and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company was originally
incorporated on February 18, 1997 as “Aftluent Dealcom Private Limited” which subsequently got converted
to public limited on January 1, 2014 and then the Company’s name changed to “Edelweiss Retail Finance
Limited” with effect from January 6, 2014. The Company is subsidiary of Edelcap Securities Limited. ERFL
is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as a Systemically Important Non Deposit Accepting Non-
Banking Financial Company.

As an NBFC-NDSI, the Company is primarily in business of lending and carries out only such activities as are
permitted unider the guidelines issued by RBI for NBFC-ND-SI

Basis of preparation:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time).

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
such as, financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) instruments,
derivative financial instrements, fair value through Profit or Loss and other financial assets held for trading,
certain property plant and equipment which have been measured at fair value . The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise
indicated.

2.1 Presentation of financial statements:

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division I1I of the
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months
after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date {non—current) is
presented in “Note 43 - Maturity Analysis of assets and liabilities™.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net
basis in all the following circumstances:

¢ The normal course of business
¢ The event of default
* The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and or its counterparties

Material accounting policies information
3.1 Recognition of Interest income and Dividend income
3.1.1 Effective Interest Rate (EIR):

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all
financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate a shorter period to the gross carrying amount of financial instrument.

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return
that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence

it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other
characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments penalty interest and charges.
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If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than
credit risk, the adjusiment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the cartying amount of
the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.

31.2

314

Interest Income:

The company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage IIT", the
Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost (net of expected
credit loss) of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired,
the Company reverts to calculating interest income on gross basis.

Penal interest income on delayed EMT / pre EMI is recognised on receipt basis,

Fee and Commission Income

Fee and commission income includes fee other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The
Company recognises the fee and commission income in accordance with the terms of the
relevant contracts / agreements and basis the probability of consideration collection.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established on
the reporting date.

Other Income
Other Income represents income earned from activities incidental to the business and is

recognised when the right to receive income is established as per the terms of the coniract.
Other ancillary charges are recognized on realisation.

3.2 Financial Instruments:

321

3.2.2

323

Date of recognition:

Financial assets and liabilities except of debt securities and borrowings are initially recognised
on the trade date, i.e. the date when Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. This includes regular ways of trade: purchase or sale of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the
customers’ account. The Company recognises borrowing when funds are available for
utilisation to the Company,

Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Trade receivables
are measured at transaction price .Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
tinancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Classification and Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:
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¢ Amortised cost
» Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVOCI}
e Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL]

The Company measures debt financial assets at amortised cost basis the following conditions:
that meet the following conditions at amortised cost:

¢ the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

¢ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in carrying value of
financial assets is recognised in profit and loss account.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)-Loans

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCT if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair
value of financial assets are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Unrealised gains or losses on debt instruments measured at FVOCI are recognised in other
comprehensive income,and on derecognition of such instrument accumulated gains or losses
are recycled to profit and loss statement. Interest income on such instrument is recognised in
profit and loss statements using EIR method.

Investment in equity instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss,
unless the management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its strategic equity
investments to be measured at FVOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity
under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
The Company measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting

date. The change in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account. “'ﬂ

o
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3.3 Financial Assets and Liabilities:
3.3.1 Financial assets held for trading:

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased
primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of
financial instruments that are managed together, for which evidence of recent pattern of short-
term profit is taking. Held-for-trading assets are recorded and measured in the balance sheet at
fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in net gain on fair value changes.

3.3.2 Debt securities and other borrowed funds:

The Company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at Amortised cost at each
reporting date. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

3.3.3 Financial Guarantee:

Financial guarantees are contract that requires the Company to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument,

Financial guarantee issued or commitments to provide a [oan at below market interest rate are
initially measured at fair value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the guarantee
or the commitment. Subsequently they are measured at higher of this amortised amount and the
amount of loss allowance.

3.3.4 Loan Commitments:

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, the Company is required to provide
a loan with pre-specitied terms to the customer over the duration of the commitment. Undrawn
loan commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

3.4 Reclassification of Financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line,
Financial liabilities are never reclassified. If the Company reclassifies financial assets. it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next
reporting period following the change in business model, The Company does not restate any previously
recognized gains. losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest

3.5 Derecognition of financial Instruments;
3.5.1 Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset {or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive contractual cash flows from the
financial asset have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both,
transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition,

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to third party
under pass through arrangement. .
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3.5.2

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset’), but assumes a contraciual
obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients’), when all of
the following conditions are met:

e The Company has no obligation to pay amount to the eventual recipients unless it has
collected equivalent amount from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the
right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

* The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual
recipients.

The Company has to remit any cash flow it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without
material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for
investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the
collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
¢ The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

e The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical
ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability
unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

The Company also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the
difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has
not already been recorded.

If the modification does not resull in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification
does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original
EIR, the Company records a modification gain or foss, to the extent that an impairment loss has
not already been recorded.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantiaily
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow
recoghised as new financial liabilily, is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

3.6 Impairment of financial assets:

The Company records provisions based on expected credit loss model (“ECL”) on all loans, other
financial assets not measured at FVTPL , undrawn loan commitment and financial guarantee contracts,
in this section all referred to as “Financial instrument”. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment,

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit loss is the difference between the cash
flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive discounted at the original effective interest rate. As ECL considers the amount and timing of
payments, a credit loss arises even if the entity expects to be paid in full but later than when contractually

due.
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Simplified Approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach® for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment
loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed
default rates over the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant
financing component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by
applying general approach to measure ECL.

General Approach

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL. when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses
(12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of an evidence
of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given
default (LGD) (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given defaulf is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD), for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount ai the reporting date; tor loan commitments and
financial guarantec contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined
based on historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

Company categories its financial assets as follows;

Stage I Assets:

Stage I assets include financial instruments that did not have a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date, For these assets, 12-month ECL
(resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage II Assets:

Stage II Assets include financial instruments that have a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. For these assets lifetime ECL (resulting from default events possible within 12 months from
reporting date) are recognised.

Stage III Assets:
Stage IIT Assets are considered credit-impaired, the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these
loans. The method is similar to that for Stage Tl assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

The expected credit loss on the uncancellable loan commitment is recognised together with the loss
allowance for the financial asset,

The Company’s product offering includes working capital facilities with a right to Company to cancel
and/or reduce the facilities with one day’s notice. The Company does not limit its exposure tis .
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3.7

3.3

3.9

3.10

3.11

losses to the contractual notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the
Company’s expectations of the customer behaviour, its likelihood of default and the Company’s future
risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities.

Collateral Valuation:

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit /guarantees, real estate,
receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements,
Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company’s balance sheet. However, the fair value
of collateral affects the calculation of ECL. It is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-
assessed on a periodic basis. However, some collateral, for example, securities relating to margin
requirements, is assessed on a daily basis.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as
collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market value are valued using
models.

Collateral Repeossessed:

The Company’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its internal
operations or should it be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred
to their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the ori ginal
secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held
for sale at their fair value (if financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at
the repossession date in line with the Company’s policy.

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets
in its retail portfolio, but engages external agents to recover funds, generally at auction, to seitle
outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice,
the residential properties under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet.

Write-Offs:

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery besides technical write off as per relevant policy,

Forborne and modified loan:

The Company sometimes make concessions or modifications to the original terms of loans as a response
to the borrower’s financial difficulties, rather than taking possession or to otherwise enforce collection
of collateral. The Company considers a loan forborne when such concessions or modifications are
provided as a result of the borrower’s present or expected financial difficulties and the Company would
not have agreed to them if the borrower had been financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficulties
include defauits on covenants, significant concerns raised by the Credit Risk Department. Forbearance
may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new [oan conditions. Once the
terms have been renegotiated, any impairment measured using the original EIR as calculated before the
modification of terms. It is the Company’s policy to monitor forborne loans to help ensure that future
payments continue to be likely to occur. If these procedures identify a loss in relation to a loan, it is
disclosed and managed as an impaired Stage IIT forborne asset and Company continues to monitor until,
it is collected or written off.

Determination of Fair Vatue;

The Company measures tinancial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based

on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
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3.12

¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use, when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are
classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level ¥ Financial Instruments:

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilitics and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 Financial Instruments:
Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived directly or indirectly
from observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 Financial Instruments:

Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques
including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial
instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the expected
net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit
risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period,

Leases:
Company as a lessee:
The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the partial retrospective approach.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabitities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of Use Assets:

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets inctudes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
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use assels are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is 2 modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short term lease

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases of
property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises lease payment associated
with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term.

Company as lessor:

The Company s accounting policy under Ind AS 116 has not changed from the comparative period. As
a lessor the Company classities its leases as either operating or finance leases. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset and classitied as an operating lease if it does not.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax atfributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed
by dividing the net profit afier tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number
of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

3.14 Retirement and other employee benefit:

3.14.1 Provident fund and National Pension Scheme:

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which
is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.14.2 Gratuity:

The Company’+ gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any,
is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on

independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. ———
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Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
3.14.3 Compensated Absences:

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the
charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting
accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of
providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.

3.14.4 Equity-setiled share-hased payments and Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs):

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are granted by the ultimate parent Company.
These are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
These includes Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) where the right to receive the difference
between the SAR price and the market price of equity shares of the ultimate parent Company
on the date of exercise, either by way of cash or issuance of equity shares of the ultimate parent
Company, is at the discretion of the ultimate parent Company. These are classified as equity
settled share based transaction.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the mumber of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the "ESOP
reserve’. In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting period,
the Group treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each instalment has a different
vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs.

3.15 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE):

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount thereol when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above. Repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) tess their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on a written
down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier.
In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal,

As per the requirement of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the useful
lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule 11 for
calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows:

| Nature of assets | Estimated useful lives
Furniture and fixtures
| Vehicles
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Office Equipment | 5 years |
Computers - Servers and networks 6 years
Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years

Leaschold Improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets or the period of lease whichever is earlier.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement
thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

3.16 Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. Intangibles such as software are amortised
over a period of 3 years based on its estimated useful life.

3.17 Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the assets is reflected
at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost,

3.18 Pravisions and other contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre~tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed on ly by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain tuture events not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the
Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as
contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then

the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.
e
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3.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise of cash at banks and in hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

3.20 Income tax expenses:

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax,

3.20.1

3.20.2

3.20.3

Current tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
“profit before tax” as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax taws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and Deferred tax for the year:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
Jjudgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amount of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods atfected. In particular,
information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial statements
are included are given below:
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4.1 Business model assessment:

The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how the financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all
relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance
measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assels and how these are managed and how the
managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amertised
cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether
the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is
part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining
financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a
change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those instruments.

4.2 Significant increase in credit risk:

As explained in note 49.1, ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for Stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for Stage II or Stage I1I assets. An asset moves to Stage Il when its credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. Ind AS 109 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the
Company takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information. Refer to note 49.1 for more details.

4.3 Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or ¢ircumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

4.4 Fair valae of firancial instruments:

The Fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make
assumptions based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Judgements and
estimates include consideration of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk, funding
value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

4.5 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained m Note 3.1.1, recognises interest income / expense using
a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of relurn over the expected behavioural
life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages
and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life
cycle of the instrumnent, as well expected changes India’s base rate and other fee income, expenses that
are integral part of the instrument

4.6 Impairment of Financial assets:

The impairment provisions for the financial assets except assets valued at fair value through Profit &
Loss account (FVTPL) are based on assumptions about estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows, collateral values, assessment of a significant increase in credit risk, probability of default
{PD) and Loss given default (LGD) rates. The Company uses judgements in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs for impairment calculations based on its past history, existing market co ,,J“—-h\\
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and forward looking estimates at the end of each period. These estimates are driven by number of factors,
change in which can result in different Jevel of allowance.

The Company’s expected credit loss (ECL) calculations are output of complex model with number of
underlying assumptions regarding choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the
ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

¢ The Company’s internal credit grading model, whick assigns PDs to the individual grades based on
ageing.

e The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment.

s The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis.

s Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs Determination
of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemployment
levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and L.GDs.

¢ Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive
the economic inputs into the ECL models.

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.

6. Recent Accounting Pronouncement:

Ministry of Corporate atfairs (“MCA™) notities new Standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indjan Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company.

7. A Scheme of Amalgamation for the merger of the Transferor Company with ECL Finance Limited (the
Transferee Company) has been initiated under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013. The scheme
was filed with the BSE on June 12, 2024, and with the NSE on June 13, 2024. On October 10, 2024, both
exchanges issued observation letters with no adverse comments. Additionally, on June 12, 2024, the Company
had applied to the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for confirmation of its previous approval related to the merger
and RBI vide its letter dated February 7, 2025 conveyed its no objection to the Scheme. Later, the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company filed a joint application before Hon'ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Mumbai Bench and the matter was heard on April 25, 2025 and is reserved for order.
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Edelwejss Retail Finance Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

ASSETS

Financial assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
{c) Trade receivables

{d) Loans

(e) Investments

(f} Other financial assets

Non-financial assets

{a) Current tax assets (net)

{b) Deferred tax assets (net)

(c) Investment property

(d) Property, plant and equipment

(e) Intangible assets under development
() Other intangible assets

{g) Other non-financial assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
{a) Trade payables

(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises

(11) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

(b) Debt securities

(c) Borrowings (other than debt securities)

(d) Subordinated liabilities

(e) Other financial liabilities

Non-financial liabilities

{a) Current tax liabilities (net})
(b} Provisions

(c) Other non-financial liabiiities

Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b} Other equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date aitached.

For Chirag R. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

1CAI Firm Registration Num ﬁH]‘)lWﬂs
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per 'rﬁ;‘é R. Shah i

Partner
Membership no: 166139

Place : Mumbai
Date : Znd May 2025

Note

10
11
12
13

14
15

16
17
18
19

20

21
22
23
24

25
26
27

28
29

1to 63

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
872.32 357.94
163.30 102.23
13.27 0.69
3,175.31 7,172.94
5,056.49 2,219.34
13.28 18.23
9,233.97 9,871.37
28.45 37.37
116.74 2126
4.08 8.30
- 12.99
11.18 89.04
94.55 104.59
255.00 273.55
9,488.97 10,144.92
- 0.01
60.38 177.69
1,173.26 1,166.41
65.67 254.47
2,279.94 2,233.62
706.50 697.72
4,286.25 4,529.93
48.84 51.49
10.85 11.38
10.42 4122
70.10 104.09
429,50 429,50
4,703.12 5,081.40
5,132.62 5,510.90
9,488.97 10,144.92

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edclweiss Retail Finance Limited

N\

Shanl-é:.tsnani
{ /Birector
DIN 09774021

Hitesh Bhadada
Chief Financial Officer

Sl Phatarlphekar

Director
DIN: 00005164

R¥ytrar

Reema Shah

Company Secretary

FSC -9052
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Currency : Indian rupees in mullions)

Note For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Revenue from operations

Interest income 30 841.95 504.06
Fee and commission income 31 19.02 20.49
Net gain on fair value changes 32 203.54 145.67
Total revenue from operations 1,064.50 1.,070.22
Other income 33 36.73 15.23
Total Income ) 1,101.23 108545
Expenses
Finance costs 34 43915 428.29
Impairment on financial instruments 35 129.69 (7.73)
Employee benefits expense 36 215.61 217.87
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 17& 10 921.16 26.27
Other expenses 37 95 .46 23891
Total expenses 971.07 903.61
. Profit before tax 130.16 181.84
Tax expenses:
Current tax 38 24.78 2240
(1} Current tax 21.38 3011
(2) Short / (Excess) provision for earlier years 3.40 (7.71)
Deferred tax 3R 14.36 1526
. Profit for the year 9102 14418

Other Comprekensive Income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans 42 0.25 (0.63)

Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income (627.67)

Less: Tax relating to items that wilt not be reclassified te profit 157.99 -

or loss 38 i
Other Comprehensive Income 1469.44) 10.63)
Total Comprehensive Income 1378.42) 143.55
Earnings per equity share (Face value of i 10 each):

(1) Basic 40 2.12 336

(2) Diluted 2.12 336
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 11063

As per our report of even date attached.

For Chirag R, Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Y. Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Numbe e \(\
Nhr: fﬁu,;m & A\S:s- L
¥ \
'f Qk’\’) AGs "\IIQJ ﬁ L‘_P
\
e -
; g1 Asnani Suml Phatarphekar
A 41

per € 'H'rrég/R. Shah 84 Director Director

Partner DIN: 09774021 DIN: 00005164

Membership no: 106139

. P‘/ 4{,9

Place : Mumbai “t’ Hitesh Bhadada
Date : 2nd May 2025 Chief Financial Officer

Reema Shah
Company Secretary
FSC -9052




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Statement of Cash fiows
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

A Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Impairment of financial assets

Interest on debt securities (ETR adjustment)

Interest on borrowings other than debt securities (EIR adjustment)
Interest on subordinated liabilities (F1R adjustment}
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Expense on Employee stock option scheme

Inierest on lease liabilities

Loss / {Profit) on sale of Property, plant and equipment

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Add / (Lessi: Adjustments for working capital changes
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade receivables

Decrease/(Tncrease) in Loans (net)

Decrease/(Increase) in Other financial assets
Decrease/(Increase) in Investments

Decrease/{Increase) in Other non financial assets

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables

Increase / (Drecrease) in Mon financial liabilities and provisions
Increase / {Decrease) in Other financial Hability

Cash used in operations
Income taxes paid {net)
Net cash used in operating activities -A

B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets
Decrease/(Increase) in Intangibles nnder development
Purchase of AlF/Security Reeeipt/Commercial Paper / NCD Bonds
Sale of Property, plant and equipment
Sale/Redemption of AIF/SR investments/Commercial Paper/NCD Bonds

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities - B

C Cash flow from financing activities
Increase / (Decrease) in Debt Securities’
Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings other than Debt Securities'
Increase / (Decrease) in Subordinate Debt
Repayment of lease obligations
Securitization liability
Interest on borrowings

Net cash generated from financing activities - C

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+()

Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the vear

Operational ¢ash flows from interest
Interest paid
Interest received
Dividend recefved
CSR conwribution to Edel Give Foundation
Notes:
1. Net figures have been reperted on account of velume of transaction

2. For disclosure relating to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, refer note 39

As per our report of even date attached.

For Chirag R, Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

1CAT Firm Registration Number E""—H =
A7 J R X450

-

8 A

| CRVA
y foafy o \.”_‘?"l
per l‘.’-;.hi.rsfﬁ. Shah
Partner

MMembership no: 106139

Place : Mumbai
Date : 2nd May-2025

For the year ended

For the vear ended

Gl

March 31, 2025 AMarch 31, 2024
130.16 181.84
91.16 2627
129,69 (7.7%)
123.31 81.74
100.48 132.48
213.19 210.68
(167.11) (33.40)
(0.46) 1.06
053 1.04
0.40 (0.04)
621.85 593.96
(12.58) 34.52
3,992.72 (1,721.55)
3.8 825.10
(293.90) 301.06
10.04 7.72
(116.36) 119.36
(3L (2.32)
(3.48) 16.03
4,171.07 173.87
(20.36) 5.08
4,150.71 178.96
(441.07) 0.94
12.99 {12.99)
(4,695.16) (1,527.96)
356.49 (€.45)
1,691.35 2,334.49
(3.075.41) 794.04
6.85 276 54
(188.80) (45113)
4632 43.02
(3.68) (4.41)
15.87 (321.30)
(437.47) (424.90)
(560.92) (882.18)
514.38 50.81
357.94 267.13
872.32 357.94
39534 397.17
756.48 1002.13
1.57 495

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

"

'x.__ \Ia}ri

\

a Asnani

/il

Hitesh Bhadada
Chzef Financial Officer

-

Sunil Phatarphekar

Director
DIN: 60005164

Zeth o

Reema Shah
Company Secretary
FSC 9052
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

8 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in gurrent accounts A 87232 357.94
872.32 357.94
9 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits with original maturity more than three months and less than 12 menths 103.30 102.23
Fixed depostis with eriginal maturity more than 12 months .
103.30 102.23
9.1, En¢umbrances on fixed depbsits with baak held by the Company
Given as credit enbancements towards securitisation 103,30 10223
10 Trade receivables As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables (Unsscured)
Receivables considerad good - non-related party 0.88 064
Receivables congidered good - related party - (Refer note 45) 12.43 0.09
Recervables which have signrficant increase in credit nisk - 0.62
13.31 135
Less : Allowancee for expected eredit losses 10.04) 10661
13.27 .60
Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade receivables: For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Impairment allowance measured as per simplified appreach
Impairment allowance - Opening Balance (D.66) {1.19}
(Add) Less: Change due to receivable balarce/bucketig (ner) 0.61 0.53
Impairment allowance - Closing Balance (0.04) (0 66)
Note: For disclosure relating to trade recervable ageing/ provision matrix, refer note 51
10(a)} Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule
Asg at March 31,2025
Outstanding for March 31,2025 "
Particulars Lessthané 6 Months - 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3
Total
Months 1 Year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 1331 - - 1331
(31} Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
mcrease in credit risk - -
(111) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired -
(1v) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good - -
(v} Disputed Trade Reoeivables — which have significant increase
en eredit risk
{v1) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impasred -
Receivable (A) 13.31 - - - 1331
(1) Undisputed Trade receivables — constdered good 0.04 - .04
{ti) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk - -
(iiiy Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired
(1v) Dispuied Trade Receivables— considered good -
—— (v} Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase
L T, in oredit risk -
% (vl Disputed Trade Receivables — credit inipaired - -
. “¥.CL Pravision on receivables iB) .04 - - - 0.04
iy ﬁeceivables net of (rovision = (AH(B) 13.27 - = = 1327
".} at March 31, 2024
A / Outstanding for March 31, 2824 ©
A > ,‘;faniculars Lessthan ¢ 6Months-1 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
\\ J Months Year years
\\_‘_____,.-/ (1} Undisputed Trade receivables ~ considered good 0.21 0.52 - - 073
(11} Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credd risk ’ - - 0.62 062
(121} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - -
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good -
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase
in credit risk - - - - - -
{vi} Disputed Trade Heceivables — credit impatrcd - -
Recervable (A} 0.21 0.52 - 062 - 135
{i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 0.00 004 - - 004
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase 1 credit risk 062 9.62
(iii) Undispuied Trade Receivabies ~ credit impaired -
(iv} Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good -
(v} Daspuied ‘Itade Receivables — which have s:gniiicant increase
in eredit risk - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - -
ECL Provision on receivables (B) 0.00 0.04 A62 0.66
Receivables net of provision = (A)(B} 021 048 = 0.69

" Unbilled amount due of March 2025 is Nil (March 2024- Nil).



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

11 Loans (At amortised Cost)
A, Term Loans
(i) Retail loans
(11} Wholesale loans

Total (A) - Gross
Less: Allowance for expected eredit loss

(including on loan commitment)
Total (A) - Net

B. Term Loans

{i) Secured by tangible assets (refer note 49.1.2)

(ii) Unsecured
Total (B) - Gross
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

(including on loan commitment)
Total {B) - Net

C. Term Loans

C.I Loans in India

(i} Public Sectors

(ii) Others

Total (C.I}) - Gross

Less: Allowance for expected credit foss
(including on loan commitment)

Total (C.I) - Net

C.1T Loans outside India
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

(inciuding on loan commitment)
Total (C.II) - Net

Total: (C.1 and C.1I)

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1,785.36 3,307.26
1,525.62 4,060.02
3,510.98 7,367.28
(135.67) {194.34)
3.175.31 7172.94
2,712.01 3,502.07
598,97 3,865.21
3,310.98 7,367.28
(135.67) (194.34)
317531 7172.94
3,310.98 7.367.2%
3,310.98 7,367.28
(135.67) (194 ,34)
3,175.31 7.172.94
317531 7172.94




Fdelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

11.2. Credit Quality of Assets

{a)

(k)

The tabte below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit nisk based on year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of
impairment allowances. Details of the Company's internal grading system are explaingd in Note 49.1 and policies on ECL allowances are set out in Note 3.6.

Refer note 49.1.3 for medified and forborne loans.

Gross carrying amount of loan assets allocated to Stage I, Stage I and Stage 111

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Stage [ Stage TT Stage TT1 Totzal Stage 1 Stage 1T Stage III Total
Loans (at amortised cost)
Performing
High grade 2,784.20 - 2,784.20 6,292.29 . - 6,292.29
Standard grade - 407.68 - 407.68 909.99 - 909.99
Non-perferming
Impaired - . 119.09 119.09 - - 165.00 165.00
Total _2,784.20 407.68 119.09 3,310.98 6,292.29 909.99 1650 736728
Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL in relation to loan assets is as follows:
Non-credit impaired Credit impaired Total
Stage 1 Stage 11 Stage LI
Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance
Particnlars carrying for carrying for carrying for carrying for
amonnt ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL
For the vear ended March 31, 2025
QOpening Balance 6,292.29 55.26 909.99 79.37 165.00 56.64 7,367.28 191.27
Transfers:
Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1) (51.25) (0.34) 5125 0.34 - - - -
Transfers 1o lifetime ECL (Stage 2] (9541} (163) - - 95.41 1.63 - -
Transfers 1o lifetime ECL - Credit (26.79) (3.61) 26.79 361 - -
impaired {Stage 3)
Remeasurement of ECL arising from 0.39 0.20 (0.39) (0.20) -
transfer of stage (net)
Net new and further lending/ (repayments) ($,361.82) (16.90} (526.76) (24.15) (92.96) {14.55)  (3,981.52) (55.60)
Amounts written off - - - (74.78) (74.78)
Loan sold to Asset Recontruction Company : - - - - -
Trust and AIF -
Closing Balance 2.784.20 36.60 407.68 51.95 119.09 47.12 3,310.98 135.67
For the vear ended March 31. 2024
Opening Balance 6,292.29 82.08 909.99 86.29 165.00 35.68 7,367.28 204.05
Transfers:
Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1) 13973 7.47 {139.73) (7.47) - -
Transfees to lifetime ECL (Stage 2) (2.57) {0.05) 297 0.05 - - - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit (2311} (0.02) (39.73) (9.22) 62.84 924 - -
impaired (Stage 3)
Remezsurement of ECL arising frem (7.35) 1.34 13.64 - 7.63
transfer of stage (net)
Net new and further lending/ (repayments) 1,687.88 (25.13) 114.17 19.60 (39.64) 11.02 1,762.40 549
Amounts wriiten off (11.23} (1.74) (15.28) (11.21) (16.67) (12.94) {43.18) (25.90)
Loan sold to Asset Recontruction Company - - - - - -
Trust and AIF . .
Closing Balance 6292.29 35.26 90999 79.37 £65.00 56.64 9.086.50 191.27
.__H
)
/ |




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

{Cutrency : Indian rupees in millions}

11.3. Credit Quality of exposure (Loan Comntitment)

(1) Gross carrying amount of loan commitment allocated to Stage L, Stage I1 and Stage 111

(b

Particulars
Loans (at amortised cost)
Performing
High grade
Standard grade
Substandard grade
Non-performing
Tmpaired

Total

Particulars

For the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Opening Balance

Transfers:

Transfers to 12 Menth ECL {Stage 1)
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2)
Transfers to lifetime ECL + Credit
impaired (Stage 3)

Remeasurement of ECL arising from
transfer of stage (net)

Net new satictions and (disbursement)
Closing Balance

For the Year Ended March 31, 2024
Opening Balance

Transfers:

Transters to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1)
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2)
Transfers to [ifetime ECL- Credit impaired
(Stage 3)

Remeasurement of ECL arising from
transfer of stage (net)

MNet new sanctions and (disbursement}

As at March 31, 2025 Ag at March 31, 2024
Stage I Stage 11 Stage 111 Total Stage | Stage 11 Stage 111 Total
- - - - 100.06 100.06
- - 100.06 100.06
Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and the cerresponding ECL in relation to of loan commitment is as follows:
Non-credit impaired Credit impaired Total
Stage 1 Stage TI Stage III
Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance
carrying for carrying for carrying for carrying for
amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL
100.06 3.11 - 100.06 311
{100.06) {3.11) - - - (100.08) (3.11)
116.00 028 - - 116.00 0.28
(15.95) 2.83 - - (0104) - (15.99) 283
106.06 311 - - - 100.01 311

Closing Balance




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continned)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

12

—

Investments
As at March 31, 2025 At fairvaloe
Designated at Subtotal Total
W tienluta At Amortised cost (1) Through |Through P&L| fair value 5= (243+4) At cost (6) (7)=
0C1(2) 1€)) through Profit| = {1+5+6)
or loss (4)
Security receipts - Measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income (Refer note 1 & 2) 179.64 - - 179.64 - 179.64
Units of AIF - 772,51 - 772,50 - 772,50
Corporate Bonds 4,104.35 - 4,104.35 - 4,104.35
Total - Gross (A} 179.64 4,876.85 - 5,056.49 - | 5,056.49
(i} Investments cutside India - - - - - -
(i1 Investment in India 179.64 4,876.85 - 5.056.49 - 5,056.49
Total (B) - 179.64 4,876.85 - 5,056.49 - 5,056.49
Less: Allowanee for impairment (C) - . - — 23 R AR
[Total et (A-C) - 179.64 | 4,876.85 - | 5,056.49 - 056,47
[As at March 31_2024 B At fair value I
Designated at Subtotal Total
Particulars At Amortised cost (1) [ Through OCI| Through P&L fair value 5= (2434 At eost (6) (7=
2) (3} through Profit (14546)
or loss (4)
Security receipts - Measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income (Refer note 1 & 2 - 1,543.92 - 1,543.92 B 1,543.92
Units of AIF - - 673.43 - 673.43 - 673.43
Corporate Bonds - ' 1.99 - 1.99 , 1.99
|
Total - Gross (A) - 154392 67542 - 221634 - 221934
{i} Investments outside India - . - -
{i1) Investment in India | - 1,543.92 | 67542 | - 221834 - 2,219.34 |
Total (B} - 1,543.52 075.42 - 2,219.34 - 221934
Less: Allowance for impairment {C) - - -
Total Net (A-C | 1,543.92 675.42 = 221934 2,219.34

Note:

During the year ended, March 31, 2024, due to the change in the rights attached, the investment in Security Receipts amounting to Rs. 1543.90 miilions, which were
previously measured at fair value through profit and less account, were derecogmized and Investment in SRs representing residual interest in the trust (“SR Instrumemnt -
Equity”) have been recognized io be measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive ITncome (FVOCI - Equity).

During the quarter ended March 31,2024, The company and EFSL discontinued tisk and reward agreement in respect of security receipts (SR’s) and seitied net amount to

Rs3,15.70 million.




12.1 Investments Details

Security receipts - Measured at fair value through
Other Comprehensive Income (Refer note 1 & 2)
EARC TRUST SC - 394

EARC Trust SC 251

Units of ALF/Commercial paper

LICHFL Housing & Infrastructure Fund
EDELWEISS VALUE AND GROWTH FUND
Edelweiss Privaie Equity Tech fund

Corporate Bonds

10.00% Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 19.07.2026 NCD»

0.00% ECL Finance Limited 23.05.2024 Bonds

10.60% ECL Finance Limited 04.01.2029 Bonds

£0.25% ECLF Perp Debt 14-May-2027 -INEB04108742

10.25% ECLF Perp Debt 08-May-2027 -INE8(4108734

10.00 % Edel Finance Co Limited 17-De¢-2027 - INE836K07171
10.18% Edel Finance Co Limited NCD 27-Apr-2027- INEB36K (7015

As at March 31, 2025 As_at March 31, 2024
Face Value/ Face Value/
NAV Quantity Amount NAV (uantity Amount
847.12 424125 175.64 719.04 424,125 304.96
- - - 728.30 17,06,000 | 1,238.96
17964 1,543.92
113.19 | 13,14,276.55 140.51 104.18 13,414,277 136.92
1,75,152.08 2,065.14 466.80 | 1,14.261.99 2,665.14 304.52
1,37,763.07 1,199.06 165.19 | 1,83,474.71 1,199.06 | 23199
772.50 | 673.43 |
1,000 1,798 2.00 (RN 1,798 198
- 1,000 3 .00
1,000 1 0.00 1,000 I i
10,00,000 1,300 1,352.79 - - -
10,00,000 1,100 1,147.67 - - -
1,060,000 16,000 1,052.05 - - -
10,00,000 500 549 .81
4,104.35 | 1.99
-2
[ |
 ————
5,056.49 | 2,219.34
o o




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions})

As at

March 31, 2023

13 Other financial assels
(unsecured, consideved good)

As at
March 31, 2024

Security Deposits 9.17 10.22
Advanees to others 4.11 7.92
Deposits- others 0.06
Margin placed with broker = 0.03
13.28 18.23
14 Current tax assets {(net)
Advanee income taxes 28.45 37.37
(net of provision for tax Rs. 186.97 miilion, previous vear Rs. 162.19
million }
2845 37.37
15 Deferred tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets
Loang
Provision for expected credit loss 32.56 47.34
TUnamaortised processing fees - EIR on lending 0.77 1.53
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Diiference between book and tax depreciation 12.10 -
Emyplo=ee benefit obligations
Provision for compensated absences 0.50 0.57
Disallowances under section 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 2,22 229
Lease liability 0,92 1.81
Others - 3.72
Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 109.83
158.9G 57.26
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation . 1.44
Investments and other financial instrumenis
Unamortised lean origination costs - EIR on lending 1.27 2.44
Recognition of Interest Strip on assignment deals 8.94 2228
Borrowinis
Effective interest rate on financial liabilities 827 8.15
Ripht-pf-use Asset (ROU) 0.82 1.69
Others B 22.86 -
42.16 36.00
116.74 21.26

Note: For disciosure relating to movement in deferred tax assets / liabilities, refer note 38.3.




Edelweiss Retail Finapce Limited

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions}

16 Property, Plant and Equipment

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment | Net Block
e Asat Additions Disposals As at As at Charge Disposals As at
D f Asset
escription of Assets April 01, during the duringthe March | April0l, forthe duringthe March 31, A;:t;;;smh
2024 year year 31, 2025 2024 year year 2025 ’

Property, Plant and Equipment

Land* 0.37 0.37 - - - - 0.37

Leaseheld improvements 2.00 200 - 1.89 0.02 Lot - -

Furniture and Fixtures 0.63 0.63 0.53 0.01 0.54 - -

Vehicles - - - - - -

Office equipment 2.40 0.03 229 0.14 2.15 0.05 2.13 0.07 0.07

Computers 12.95 - 525 7.70 12.20 0.08 498 7.30 0.40

Investmeni Property - 441.04 441.04 10,00 10.00 -

Right-of-use Asset (ROU) 124.84 012 0.48 124,48 11814 311 121.25 3.23
| Total 143.19 441.19 451.69 132.69 | 134.91 13.27 19.56 128.6_2_ 4.08

17 Intangible Assets Under Development
(i) Intangible Assets Under Development Ageing Schedule:-
Amount in Intangible Assets Under
i S
Intangible Assets Under Development for 2 peried of March 31, 2025 |
Development h More Togal
P Liess thiun 1-2 Years| 2-3vyears | than3
1 year
¥ears

| Project in prozress

Digitat Lending Platform {DLFP)

Total

(ii) For Intangible Assets Under Development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan, refer

below schedule:-

__To be completed in

Intangible Assets Under Less than More Total
Development 1 vear 1-2 Years| 2-3 vears | than3
| y vears -
Digital Lending Platform (DLP - . -
| Total - -
18 Other Intangible Assets
= Gross Block Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment | Net BIOCk_.!
e As at Additions Disposals Asat |  Asat Charge Disposals As at
D t T Asset:
eecription of Assets April 01, duaring the during the | March | April01, forthe duringthe | March 31, A;?t ;J;;Ch
2024 year year 31, 2025 2024 year year 2025 ’ '
|
Other Intangible Assets
Software 127.14 0.04 16.55 111063 3811 77.89 16.55 99.45 11.18
| Total 127.14 0.04 1655 | 110.63 3811 77.89 16.55 99,45 1118 |
Note:
* Charged against secured redeemable non-convertible debentures
e
\




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2024 (Continued)

(Cwrency : ndian rupees in millions}

16  Property, Plant and Equipment {Previous Year)

(Gross Block . Accumulated Derreciation and Impairment Net Block |
L As at Additions  Disposals As at As at Disposals Ag at Asat |
D Iy f Asset p ) ; . .
escniption of Assels April 01,  duringthe during the March 31, | April 01, Ct:":g:afr‘“ during the  March 31, | March 31,
2023 year year 2024 2023 ¥ year 2024 2024
Property, Plant and Equipment
Land* 0.37 - 037 - - . 0.37
Leaschold improvements 373 - 1.73 2.00 354 0.08 173 1.89 R
Furniture and Fixtures 1.9% (0.04) 132 0.63 1.51 0.07 1.05 0.53 0.10
Office equipment 407 0.05 1.72 240 3.65 0.11 1.61 2.1s 0.25
Computers 13.37 042 12.95 12.26 0.33 0.39 12.20 0.75
Right-of-use Asset (ROU) 138.66 13.82 12484 114.74 3.40 118.14 6.70
| Total 162.19 0.01 19,01 143,19 135.70 3.99 4.78 134.91 8.30
17 Intangibie Assets Under Development (Previous Year)
(1) Intangible Assets Under Development Ageing Schedule:-
Amount in Intangible Assets Under Devéfopment for
Intangible Assets Under Development |~ Ao O e e Total
Less than 1 More than 3
1-2 Years | 2-3 years
\gar years
| Project in progress —
Dipital Lending Platform ([JLP #* 12,59 - - - 12.99
Total _ 1259} - - | 1299]

{ii) For Intangible Assets Under Development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared o its original plan, refer below  schedule:-

To be completed in

Intangible Assets Under Development "Less than 1| T Mare than 3| Total
1-2 Years | 2-3 years
— | vear - " | wears
Dizital Lending Platform (DLP) | - - = - -
[ Total 1 - - —
18  Other Iimangible Assets (Previous Year)
Gross Block Accumulated Amortisation and Impaimment Net Block
L As at Additions  Disposals |  Asat Asat Disposals Ag at As at
D tion of Asset,
C3CHPHOn DT ASSETS April01, duringthe during the | March 31, | April OL, Ct];:rf:;;“‘ during the | March 31, | March 31,
2023 year year 2024 2023 ! year 2024 2024
Other Intangible Assets I
|
Software 128.09 (0.95) 127.14 | 15.83 22.28 38.11 | 89.04
[ Total 128.09 -0.95 127.14 | 1583 2220 || 3811 89.04 |
Note:
*Charged against secured redeemable non-convertible debentures
e
|
A




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
[Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

20

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
19 Other non-financial assets
Inpui tax credit (Goods and Services Tax) 91.29 99.35
Prepaid expenses L6l 3.29
Advances to venders 1.40 1.59
Advanees to employees 0.09 0.36
Others 0.17
94,55 104.59
Trade Payables
Trade payables to non-related parties 44.48 91.28
Trade payables to related parties 16,40 86.42
60.88 177.70
Note:
{i} Total outstanding dues to creditozs other than micro 60.88 177.69
enterprises and small enterprises
{ii} Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 0.01

20,

21

Py

Trade Payables includes Nill payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro, Small and Medinm Enierprises Development
Act, 2006. (Previous Year (.01 million) Taterest paid by the company during the year to “Suppliers™ registered under this Act is
Nill {Previous year 0.02 militon). The aforementioned is based on the responses received by the company to its inquiries with
suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act.

Trade Payable Ageing :-
Outstanding for March 31, 2025 "
Particulars Total
Less than 1 1-2 2-3 More than 3
Year Years years years
(i) MSME R . | _ . l
(ii) Others 60.88 - = = 60.88 |
(iii} Dis|uted dues - MSME . : N - _—
(1v) Dispuied dues - Others - . - - -
Total — | o8| - - - | 6088]
Trade Payable Ageing :- - -
Outszanding for March 31, 2024°
Particulars 1 Total
Less than i 1-2
Year Years 2:3 years

| - - ) Il More than 3 years

(i) MSME 0.01 0.00 : - 0.01
(i) Others | 17052 000 1.08 570 17769
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -1
| Total 170.94 0.0t 1.06 570 | 177.70

# Unbilled amount due of March 2025 is Rs.44.58 million (March 2024- Rs.86.52 million).

Debt securities (In India)

(At amortised cost) Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non-convertible redeemable debentures
Privately placed non-convertible debentures - Secured 28853 28325
Publicly placed non-convertible debentures - Secured 884.73 883.16
1,173.26 1,166.41

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other terms, refer note 53
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22  Borrowings other than debt securities (In India)
(At amortised cost)

Term Loan (secured)
From Financial Institution

Nete: For disclosure relating to repayment and other terms, refer note 52

Bank overdraft (Secured)
Bank overdraft is in nature of committed Cash Credit lizes repayable on demand
(Interest rate range, March-25 7.95% - 11.55%, March-24 7.95% - 11.55% }

22{a} Wiltul Defaulter

Asat As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
0.00 180.34

- 180.34

65.67 74.13

65.67 74.13

65.67 254.47

The company is not declared as a wilful defaulier by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

22(b) Compliance fo the borrower's terms & periodical filling of statements of current assets

Company has berrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of ciovent assets as mentioned in Note 22 above
{i) Company has filed quarterly returns or statements of current assets in timely manner an are in agreement with the books of accounts

(i1} There are no material discrepancies in quaterly refurns or statements filled.

23  Subordinated liabilities {In India)
(At amartised cost)

Non-convertible subordinated debentures
Non-convertible perpetuai debentures

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other terms, refer note 54 & 55

24 Other financial liabilities

Securitisation liability

Irivestor pavable on assigned loans

Lease liabilities

Payable to emplovees

Book overdraft

Debenture application money received pending allotment

Other payable

1,821.18 1774.74
458.76 458.88
2,279.94 2233.62
524.60 492.20
23.77 40.30
3.66 7.19
54.60 31.88
7.03 3.96
.13 0.13
92.71 122,07
706.50 697.72
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As at
March 31, 2025

25 Current tax liabilities (net)

As at
March 31, 2024

Provisien for taxation 48.84 51.49
(net of advance tax Rs. 482.5% million, previous year Rs. 479.90 million)
48.84 51,49
26 Provisions
Provision for employee benefits {refer note 42)
Gratuity 8.80 9.11
Compensated leave absences 2,00 2.27
Others 0.04 0.00
10.85 11.38
27 Other non-financial liabilities
Payable to others 0.71 7.98
Statutory dues pavable 9,71 3324
10.42 4122




Edelweiss Refail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continned)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

28

(a)

(b)

{c)

Equity share capital
Authorised :

5,00,00,000 (Previous year: 5,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10 cach

Issued, Subscribed and Paid np:
4,29,50,000 (Previous year: 4,29 50,000} Equity shares of Rs. 10, fully
paid-up

Movement in share capital :

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year
Shares issued during the vear
QOutstanding at the end of the year

Terms/rights attached to equity shares :

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

500.00 500.00
500,00 500.00
42950 420.50
'429.50 429,50
As at Asal
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No of shares Amount  Noof shares  Amount
4,29,50,000 429,50 4,29.50,000 42950
4,29,50,000 42950 42950000 42950

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/-. Each holder of ¢quity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. In

the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of

all preferential amounts.

Shares held by Promoters/holding/ultimate holding company and/or their snbsidiaries

Edelcap Securities Limited (Holding company)**

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (Ultimate holding company)
Edelweiss Finvest Limited( Amalgarmeted with Edel Finance Company
Limited) (Fetlow subsidiary)

Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited} (Fellow
subsidiary)®

% Change Asat
during the March 31, 2025
year No of shares b0
- 3,02,58,333 70.45%
30,00,000 6,98%
96,91,667 22.57%

4,29,50.000 100.00%

As at

March 31, 2024

No of shares %
3,02,58,333 70.45%
30,00,000 6.98%
9691667  22.57%

472950000 1C0.00%

**Includes & Equity shares held by nominees of Edelcap Securities Limited.
(@) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment.
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29

29.1,

(2}

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

o

Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Other Equity
Capital reserve 8.18 418
Securities premium 3,112.08 3,1:2.08
Statntory reserve under section 45-IC 455,43 437.23
Debenture redemption reserve 22,91 2291
Deemed capital contribution - Equity 594 594
Fair value gain / {loss} - on equity instrument measured at - FVOCT (469.68) -
Retained earnings 1,568.27 1,495.07
4,703.12 5,081 411

Note: For movement in Other Equity, refer 'Statement of changes in Equity’
Nature and purpose of Reserves

Capital reserve
Capital reserve represents the gains of capital nature which is not freely available for distribution.

Securities Premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. Balance in Securities premiumn can be wiilised only for limited purposes such as
issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Special Reserve under Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Reserve created under section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as
disclosed in the profit and loss acceunt and before any dividend is declared.

Dehbenture Redemption Reserve

The Company being an NBFC is required to create and maintain debenture redemptien reserve (DRR) equivalent to 25% of the public issue of
debentures, as reguired by Companies Act, 2013. The amounts credited to the DRR may not be utilised except on redemption ef such debentures. On
redemption of debentures, the amount may be transferred from debenture redemption reserve to retained eamnings. However, as per the recemt
amendment to the Companies Act 2013, NBFCs are no longer required ic ereate and maintain DRR. Accordingly, the Company has not created
incremental DRR on existing public issue of debentures, post the said amendment, though the Company continues to maintain the DRR created
earlier till the maturity of these debentures.

Deemed capital contribution - Equity
This reserve relates to share options granted to eligible employees of the Company by the parent company under its emplovee share eption plan.

Retained Earnings
Retained eamings comprises of the Company’s undistributed eamings after taxes.
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30 Interest Income (at amortised cost)

Inierest on Loans

Interest income on Investments

Interest on deposits with bank

Other interest income

Orher interest income on direct assignment

31 Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income

32 Net gain/loss on fair value changes

On trading portfolio

Tnvestment

Profit / {loss) on trading of securities (FYTPL)
Profit on sale of mutual fund units (FVTPL)
Profit on sale of equity shares (FVTPL)

On Others
Gain / (loss} on AIF

Fair value changes
Realised
Un-realised

33 Other income
Income on Business Services

Interest Income - On Tax Refund
(thers

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

691.13 216.10
106.38 4.49
8.22 8.80
36.22 1.11
. 73.56
841.95 904.06
19.02 20.49
19.02 2049
60,75 (1.03)
13.58 301
22.82 17.93
106.39 125.76
203.54 14567
36.43 112.27
167.11 33.40
203.54 145.67
5.00 8.63
2.20 405
29,53 2.55
36.73 15.23
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34

35

36

Finance costs (at amortised cost)

Interest on borrowings

Interest on debt securities

Interest on subordinated lighilitias

Other interest expense (including bank charges)
Interest on lease liabilities

Impairment on financial instruments

Loss on sale of loan assets sold to assets reconstruction company (trust)
Other Credit Cost

Lass on sale of Investment Property

Bad- debts and advances written off

Provision for expected credit loss (at amortised cost)

(including on lean commitments)

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds

Gratuity expense {refer note 42)
Share based paymenis to employees

(Refer note below)
Staff welfare expenses

Note:

For the year ended  For the vear ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
100.48 131,94
123.81 81.74
213.19 210.68
1.14 2.88
0.53 1.04

439.15 428.29
. (131}

50.00 -
74.78 -

62.36 2298
(57.45) (29.39)
129.69 (7.7%)
201,43 159,00

8.26 10.61
2.23 2.68

(0.59) 0.21
4.27 536
T 21561 21787

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited ("EFSL”) the ultimate holding Company has granted an Employee stock option plan
(ESOPY Siock Appreciation Rights (ESAR) option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded manner to
Company’s employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such stock options /rights

Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee ¢ost.
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37

371

372

Other expenses

Advertisement and business promotion
Commission and brokerage
Communication

Directors' sitting fees

Legal and professional fees

Printing and stationery

Rent, Rates and taxes (net of recovery|
Repairs and maintenance

Computer expenses

Corporate social responsibility (refer note 37.2)
Loss on sake of of fixed assets

Office expenses

Pastage and courier

Goods & Service tax expenses

Stamp duty

Auditors' remuneration {refer note 38.1)
Travelling and conveyance
Warehousing charges

Miscellaneous expenses

Auditors’ remuneration
As an Auditor
Statutory Audit
Limited Review
Certification
Towards reimbursement of expenses

Details of CSR Expenditure:
As per the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act 2013

(2} Amount required to be spent by the company during the year
(b} Amaunt of expenditure incurred
Amaount spent {paid in cash)
(i) Construction/ Acquisition of any assets
(ii} For purpose other than {i) above
Amount to be spent (yel to be paid in cash)
(i} Construction/ Acquisition of any assets
{ii) For purpose other than (i) above
(c) Shortfall at the end of the year
(d) Total of previous years shortfall
() Reason for shortfall
(f) Details of related party transactions
Wame of Related Party
Relationship

(g) Where a provision is made with respect to a hability incurred by

eniering into g contractual obligation
(h} Nature of CSR activities
For the year ended March, 31 2025

For the causes of Education
For the year ended March, 31 2024

Far the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the vear ended
March 31, 2024

0,49 0.24
7.39 208
0.40 116
1.44 2.91
(1L.18) 134,36
0.21 0.57
40.11 4381
0.42 0.61
22.33 726
2.57 4.95
0.40
1.79 4.54
0.25 G.12
13.98 2013
3.85 435
.99 211
5.50 8.88
0.10 0.09
2.43 2.53
95.46 238.91
0.65 3.65
1.05 165
1.13 0.28
0.16 0.13
— 2.99 2.1)
2.57 495
2.57 495
2.57 495
Not Applicable Not Applicable

Edelgive Foundation Edelgive Foundation

Fellow Subsidiary  Fellow Subsidiary

For the causes of Education and Community Resilience and Climate Action (CRCA).
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38 Income tax

38.1, The components of income tax expense:

Current tax
Short/(excess) provision for carlier years
Deferred tax

Total tax charge

Current tax
Deferred tax

38.2 Reconciliation of total tax charge

Accounting profit before tax as per financial statements

Tax rate {in perceniage)
Income tax expense calculated based on this tax rate
Short/(excess) provision for earlier years
Effect of non—deductible expenses:
Others

Tax charge for the year recorded in P&L

Effective tax rate

For the period ended
March 31, 2025

For the period ended
March 31, 2024

21.38 36011

3.40 (7.71)

14.36 15.26

39.14 37.66

24.78 22,40

14.36 15.26

For the period ended  For the peried ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

130,16 181.84
2517% 25.17%
3276 4577
3.40 (7.71)
2.98 {0.40)
39.14 37.66
30.07% 20.71%
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38 Income tax

38.3. Movement of Deferred Tax assets / liabilities

Deferred tax Deferred tax
asset / In profit or In OCI Directlyin Total asset /
(liability) loss equity movement  (liability)
_{Opening) {Closing}
For the year ended March 31, 2025
Deferred taxes in relation to:
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for expected credit loss 47.33 (14.77) : - (14.77) 32.56
Retirement Benefits 2.87 (0.1[5) - (0.15) 2.72
Equity instrument measured at FVOCI - 109.83 109 83 109.83
Difference between book and tax WDV (1.44) 13.54 - 13.54 12.10
(including intangibles)
Lease liability 1.81 (0.89) - - {0.89) 0.92
Others 372 (26.58) - - (26 .58) (22.86)
Effective interest rate on financial assets (0.90) 0.41 - 041 (0.49)
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Stage 3 Income recognition - - - - - -
Interest spread on assignment transactions (22.28) 13.34 - 1334 (8.94)
Effective interest rate on financial (8.15) (013 - (0.13) (8.28)
Right-of-use Asset (ROU) (1.69) 0.87 . - 0.87 (0.82)
Total 21.27 [14.361 109.83 - 95.47 116.74

* Current Tax Asset Rs. 48.16 million on fair valuation of Security receipt classified as equity which is appearing under [ncome tax
relating to items that will not be recfassified to profit or loss under other comprehensive income.

For the year ended March 31, 2024
Deferred taxes in relation to:

Dreferred Tax Assets

Provision for expected credit loss 51.41 (4.10) - - (4.10) 47.33
Retirement Benefits (4.21}) 7.08 - - 7.08 2.87
Difference between book and tax WDV 504 (6.48) - - (6.48) (1.44}%
(including intangibles)

Lease liability 645 (4.64) - - {4.64) 1.81
Others 21.13 (17.41) - (17.41) 372
Effective interest rate on financial assets (1.35) 0.45 - - 0.45 (G.50)

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Stage 3 Tnceme recognition - -
Interest spread on assigmment transactions (25.57) 3.29 : 329 (22.28)

Effective interest rate on financial (10.36) 21 221 (8.15)
Right-of-use Asset (ROU) (6.02) 433 . - 433 (1.69)
Total 2 3654 (1527 (15.27) 21.26
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39 Cash Flow Disclosure

Change in Liabilities arising from financing acitivies

. As at April Changes in As at March
Particulsne 01,2024 CMMFIOWS  prvame  OMOST 51 amos
Debt Securities 1,166.41 - - 6.85 1,173.26
Borrowings ether than Debt Securities 254.47 (193.44) - 4.64 65.67
Subordinated Liabilities 2,233.62 - 46.32 227994
Securitization Hability 492,19 (492.19) - 524.60 524.60
Lease Liabitity 7.19 {3.56) - 0.03 366

4,153.89 1689.191 " 582,43 4,047.13

. As at April Changes in As at March

Particulars 01, 2 0;)3 Cash Flows Fair fa]ue Others* 31, 2024
Debt Securities 889.88 306.00 - (23.48) 1,166.41
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 705.60 (451.80) - 0.67 254.47
Subordinated Liabilities 2.190.60 - - 43.02 2,233.62
Securitization lability 813.50 (813.50) - 49220 492.19
Lease Liability 25.62 (4.41) - (14.01) 7.19

462518 1969.71) - 498 42 415389

*Includes the effect of accrued but not paid interest on borrowing, amortisation of processing fees ete.
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40. Farnings per Share

41.

(a}

(b)

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Net Profit attributable to Equity holders of the Company - A 91.02 144.18
Weighted average Number of Shares

Number of equity shares outstanding ai the beginning of the year 42,95 4295
- Number of equity shares issued during the year

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 4295 42.95

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (based 42.95 4295
on the date of issue of shares} - B

Nominal value of equity shares 10.00 10.00
Basic and diluted earings per share (in rupees) (A/B) 2.12 336

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive/ petential equity shares issued or outstanding as
at the year end.

Contingent Liability and Commitment:

Contingent Liability
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Taxation matters 12.19 5.50
Litigation pending against the company Nil Nil

The Company’s pending litigations mainly comprnise of claims against the Company pertaining te proceadings pending with
Ingome Tax and other authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately
provided for where provisions are required and disclesed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in the financial statements.
The Cempany believes that the cutcome of these proceedings will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company’s

financial posttion and results of operations.

Commitment:
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account - 9.47
Loan sanctioned pending disbursements - 100.06
AIF Fung pending commitments 897.85 988.05
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42.

(a}

(b}

U]

(i)

(1))

(iv)

Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribntion plan - Provident funds

In accerdance with Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the
provident fund, a defined contribition plan, in which, both the employee and the Company contribute menthly at a determined rate. These contributions are made to
a recognized provident fund administered by Regional Provident Fund Cemmissioner. The emplovees contribute 12% of their basic salary and the Company
contributes an equal ammount.

The Company recognised as of March 31,2025 Rs. 7.72 millions (March 31, 2024 : Rs 10.11 millions} for provident fund in the Statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Cempany provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering all emplovees. The plan provides a lump
sum payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment in accordance with the rules laid down in the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The
gratuity benefit is partially provided through funded plan and annual expense is charged to the statement of profit and loss on the basis of actuarial valuation.

The most recent actuarial valuatien of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) for gratuity were carried out as at March 31, 2025
The present value of the defined benefit obligatiens and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit
Methed.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company’s
financial statements as at balanice sheet date:

As at Asat

March 31. 2025 March 312024
Present value of defined benefit obligations (A) - 3.30 9.11
Fair Value of plan assets (B} - -
Present value of defined benefit obligations (A-B) - 8.80 911
Net deficit / (assets) are analysed as:
Liabilities - 911
Assefs 8.80 -

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability:
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its compoenents:
Net defined benefit (asset)

liability
March 31, 2025 March 31 2624 March 31,2025 March 31 2024 March 31,2025 March 31 2024

Defined benefit obligation Fair value of plan assets

Present value of defined benefit obligations (opening) o.11 911 - 9,11 9.11

Current service cost 1.63 2.09 - - 1.63 2.09

Past service cost - - - =

Interest cost 0.61 0.59 - - 0.61 0.59
11.34 11.79 - - 11.34 11.79

Other comprehensive Income
Remeasurement Actuarial loss (gain) arising from :

Experience 0.29 0.05 - - 0.29 0.05
Finaneial assumptions (0.54) 0.58 - - (0.54) 0.58
Expected return from plan assets . - - -
(0.25) 0.63 - - (0.25) 0.63
Others
Transfer In/ (Out) - 0.73) - - - (.73}
Contributions by Employer . - - -
Benefits paid (2.29) (2.56) - = _12.291 12.56)
(2.29) (3.29) - (2.29) (3.29)
Closing Balance (i) + (if) + (iii} 3.81 9.13 - - 8.81 9.13
Represented by

Net defined benefit asset -
Net defined benefit liability




Components of defined benefit plan cost:
For the year ended  Fur the veiur ended
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024

(i) Recogoised in Statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 1.63 209
Interest cost 0.61 0,59
Expected return on plan assets - -
Past service cost - -
2.23 2.68

(ii) Recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability/(asset) (0.25) 0.63
Retum on plan assets excluding net interest ) -

(0.25) 0.63
Total (i) + (ii} 1.98 331
Actuarial assumptions:
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:
As at Asat
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount Rate 7.00% 7.10%
Salary Growth Rate 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal/Attition Rate (based on categories) 16.00% 16.00%
Expected return on plan Assets (p.a} NA NA
Mortality Rate TALM 2012 TALM 2012-
14HUltimate) 14(Ultimate)
Expected weighted average remainin working lives of emplovees 4 Years 4 Years
Sensitivity analysis:
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Tncrease Decrease Increase Decrease
Salary Growth Rate (+/- 1%) 0.50 (0.47) 0.57 (0.52)
Discount Rate (+/- [%) (0.47) 0.50 (0.52) 0.57
Withdrawl Rate (/- 1%) (0.02) 0.02 - -

Mortality {increase in expected lifetime by 1 year) - -
Mortality (increase in expected lifetime by 3 vear) - -

The sensitivity is performed on the DBO at the respective valuation date by modifying one parameter whilst retaining other parameters constant. There are no
changes from the previous period to the methods and asswnptions underlying the sensitivity analysis.

Asset liability comparisons: As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Present value of DBO - B.80 9.11

Fair Value of Plan assects -

Net (Assetsy/Liabilitiy - 8.80 9.11

{(¢) Compensated absences :
The Cempany provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the balance sheet date using prejected unit credit method based on actuarial valuation. The
leave encashment on separatien is paid on basic salary.
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43. Maturity Analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. With
regard to loans and advances to customers, the company wses the same basis of expected repayment behavieur as used for contractual

maturity analysis,

Particulars

Financial Assets
Cash and eash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents
Trade receiveables
Loans
Tnvestmenis
Other financial assets

Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets (net)
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible assets under development
Orther Intangible asseis
Other non-financial assets

Total Assets

Financial Liabilities
Trade pavables
Debt securities
Borrowings (other than debt sgeuritics)
Suberdinated Liabilities
Other financial liabilities

Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net)
Provisions
Other non-financial liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

" Within 12

After 12

Within 12

After 12

months months dotal months months o
872.32 - 872,32 35794 35794
103.30 - 103.30 102.23 102.23

13.27 - 13.27 0.69 - 0.6%
836.38 2,338.93 3,175.31 3,838.75 3,334 16 7,17294
52,12 5,004.37 5,056.49 - 2,219.34 2,219.34
4.11 917 1328 813 1010 1823

- 28.45 28.45 37.37 37.37

- 116.74 116.74 21.26 21.26

- 4.08 4,08 8.30 830

- - - 12.99 12.99

- 11.18 11.18 89.04 89.04
94.55 - 94,55 104.59 - 104,59
1,976.06 7,512.92 9,488.97 441233 5,732.59 10,144 .92
60.88 60.38 177.70 177.70
0.05 1,173.21 1,173.26 0.29 1,166.12 1,166.41
65.66 . 65.67 254.47 - 254.47
343.66 1,936.29 2,279.94 74.58 2,159.04 2,233.62
248.53 457.97 706.50 485.89 211.84 697.72
48,84 - 48.84 51.49 51.49
- 10.85 10.85 1.48 9.90 11.38
10,42 10.42 41.22 4122
778.02 3,578.32 4,356.35 1,087.12 3,546.90 4.634.02
1,19803  3,934.60 5,132.62 332521 2.185.69 5.510.90
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44. Sepment reperting

The Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India as a Non Banking Financial Company engaged in the business of lending and financing , All other activities of the company revolve around the main
busingss. Accordmgly, there is no separate reportable ssgment and hence ne disclosure is made under Ind AS 108 - 'Operating Segment Reporting”. Further, segmentation brsed on geography has not been
presented a3 the Company oporates only i India.

45, Related Party Disclosures

{i) List of reluted pariies and relutivoship:

Name of related parties by whom control is exercised Edelweiss Financial Services Limited Ultimate holding Company
Edelcop Seeusisies Limited fHolding company)
Fellow Subsidiaries ECL Finange Limited
{with whom transactions have tzken place) Edel Financs Company Limited {Formerly known #s Edel Finvest Limited)

Edelweiss [nvesanents Lunsted

Ecap Equities Limited (Formerly known as Edel Land Limited)

EdelGive Foandation

Edelweiss Asset Management Linied

Edehweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Zuno General Ingyrance Limited (formerly known as Edelweies General Inswrance Company
Limited)}

Nido Home Finance Limited {Formerly knowar as Edelweiss [Tousing, Financs Limited)
ECAP Securitics and Investments Lirnited{formerly Ecap Equities)

Edebhweias Rural & Corpeorate Services Limited

EDELWEISS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED {formaty known as Edelweiss
Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited

Edelweiss Valoe And Growth Fund

Edelweiss Privaie Egnity Tech fund

Sekura [ndia Management Limited (EAAA

Key Marnagement Personach Mr. Phanindranath Kakarlz (wef Sep 15, 2020 to 21st Ociober-2024) Mon Executive Director
Ms. Shama Asnani fwef Jon 4 2024} Non Executive Director
Mr Hitesh Bitadada (wef Juby 26, 2022} Chiefl Financial CHTecor
Mr. Manoj Agarwal (wef Feb 1, 2023 to Decenther 27, 2024} Manager
Mr, Arnab Duifa (wef December 28, 2024) Manager
Ms. Koema Shab {wel Aug 1, 20233 Company Secretary
Independent Dircctar . Vined Joseta fwef May 13, 20213 Independent Dirertor
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar {wef Apr 12, 2020) Independent Director

(i) Transactions with related parties :

For the year ended  For the year ended

MNat f Transacti v
agure ol Trpa=siyn Related Farty Name March31. 2028 March 31, 2024

Capital Aceoust Transaction during the year:

Capita] Account Transa

Loans (aken from Maximum transaction during the year
Edehweiss Rural & Corporaie Services Limited 2,000 -
Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly knovwn as Edgl Land Limited) 200.00

Yolume of iransachions during the year

Edchweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 2,000.00
Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly known s Ede$ Land Limited} 150000
45, Related Party Disclosures

Loans repaid to RMaximum transaction during the vear
Edelweiss Rural & Corperate Services Limited 2.000.(0
Ecap Equitics Limited{Formerly known as Edel Land Limitcd) 1,500
Vohime of transactions during the vear
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 2,00.09
Ecap Equities Lintited{Farmerly knewn as Edel Land Limited) 1,500.00

Louns given o Maximum fransaction during the year
ECL Finance Linzited 0008 -
Edclweiss Rural & Corporale Services Limited 250.00
Ecap Equities Limited{Formerty known as Edel Land Limited) - 500.00
ECAP Securities and Investments Limited{formerly Ecap Equitigs} 200.00 1.250.00
Folume of transactions durtag the vear
ECL Finance Limited LS50.00 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limired 250.00
Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly know as Edel Land Litnited) - 1,000.00
ECAP Securities and Investments Limited(formerly Ecap Equities) 200,00 2,500.00

Loans repaid by Maxininm transaction during the year
ECL Finance Limited 1,240
Edelweiss Rural & Corporaie Services Limited 250.00
Ecap Equities Limited{Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) - 1,000,00
ECAP Secunties and Investmenis Limited{formerly Ecap Equities) 1,000.00
Volume of transactions during the vear
ECL Finance Limited ' 1,200.00
Edglweisa Ryral & Corporats Services Limifgd - 25060
Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited} - 1,300.00
ECAP Securities and Iivestivents Limited({formerly Ecap Equities} 2,700.00




45,

Nuture of Transaction

Faor the year ended

ted Party N
Relaf urty Nume March 312025

Investment in Commercial s
Investment in Commercial Paper Buy Back

Loan porfolio purchase under direct assignmont

Nen convertible debentures parchased from

Perpetual bonds purchased from

Redemption of Non convertible debenture held by (Face Value)

Redemption of Non eonvertible debenture held in {Face valuc)

Non corvertible debentares (Loans) purchased from

Sale of Security Receipts
AIF Purchase

Sale of securities
Related Party Disclosores

Current Account Transactinns;

Interest ingoms o logn (o

Interest income on Commercial Paper

Tnterest Ineome on Nem convertible Debentures

Service charges received

Rammb of ARC fee from

Shared premises cost paid {net}

Cost reitnburseatent pafd to (ney)

Management Fees pad to

Tnterest Expextee on loan from

Interest Expernse on Non convertible debentores

Inigrosi Expenses on Sub-debt
Brokgrage paid

Enterprise Service charpe paid o

Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly known = Edel Land Limited) T50.00
Ecay Equitics Limited{Fermerly known as Bdel Land Limnted) 750.00
Nido Home Frauee Limitesd (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited} 420,00
Edel Finance Campany Limited 1,003.56
Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limiigd) 518.54
Edel Finance Company Limited 2,406.92
ECL Finance Linrited

ECL Finance Linxited 000
ECL Finance Limitcd

ECL Finance Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

ECL Finance Limited

ECL Finance Limited 1186
Edolweiga Rural & Corperate Scrvices Limied -
Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Lavd Limiled) .

ECAP Securities and Envesimgnts Limited{formerly Ecap Equities) 176.54
Ecap Equitics Limited{Fermerly known as Edel Land Limited} 36.20
ECL Finance Limsited 77.11
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelwviss Housing Finance Limited) 0.13
Edel Finance Company Limited 29405
Nido Home Finanee Limited (Formerly known as Edetweiss Housing Finance Limited) 0.2%

Edelweiss Financiat Scivices Limited

ECL Finance Limited 1892
Nide Home Fiance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 12,02
Ecap Equitics Limsicd(Formerly known ag Edel Land Limated) -

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.17
Edehweiss Rurat & Corporate Services Limited 153
Ecep Equitiss Limited{Formerly known as Edef Land Limired)

ECL Fingmez Limited 0.48
Mido Home Finance Limited {Formerly known as Edelwoiss Housing Finance Limited} 1.86
Sekura India Management Limited (EAA A) 713
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 17532
Edelweiss Raral & Corparate Services Limited 4.62
Feap Equitics Limited (Formerty known as Edel Land Limited i €57
Edetweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited (R4
Edel Finenge Company Limited 6.91
ECL Finance Limited @77
Ecap Equities Limited(Formerty known as Edel Land Limited) 1.65
EDELWEISS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 42.21
Edelweiss Investment Limited + 0.0t

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

For the yoar ended
March 31. 2024

1,487.21

$20.60
1,602.03

135.53

0.00
121.56
542

133
018

1)
94
557

2207
807
0.7%
.18
¢03
0.01

1.64

1.63

s
6.94
0.45
.64

37.86
0L

149



45,

45,

Related Party Disclosures

Natere of Fransaction

Advisory fees paid to
Arranjger Fee veeend [rom
Servies Foe paid to

CSR Expenses Pad 1o

ESOP cost reimburserent Paid

Dircetar Sitting leas

Remuneration paid to

Salc of Property, Plant and Equipment
ESCP cost Income:
Balances with related parties:

Loans gives ta

Related Party Disclosures

Inserest accrued on loan given to

Non converlible debeatured (ot face valug) held by

Perpetual dehentures (Face valuc) held in
Subcerdinated debeuture (Face Value) held by
Perpetual debenture (Face Value) held by

Non cenvertibk debentores (Faee Valuo) held i

Iaterest acerued on Perpetual debentures held by

Interest acersed on Subordinated debentores held by

Intevest acerued on Non convertible debentwres held by

Interest acerued but not due on Perpemal debentures held in

Interest acerued on Non converiible debentures held in

Trade Payables

ESOP cost recaivable 1o

Trade Reccivables

Investment in Seowvity Receipts isaued by

Investmsent in Securitics

Notes:

Relaied Party Name

For the year ended
March 31. 2025

Nido Home Finance Limited {Formerty known as Edelweiss Housing, Finance Limiied}
Nido Home Finance Eimnited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Honsing, Finaneg Limidicr)}
ECL Finance Limited

EdelGive Foundation

Edelweiss Fimanctal Services Limited

M. Vinod Juneja
Mr, Spail Phatarphckar

Reema Shah
Hitesh Bhadads
Manoj Agarwal
Arnab Dulta

Wide Home Fittance Limited {(Formerly known s Edetweiss Housing Finance Limiicd)

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

ECL Pmange Linited
ECAP Securities and Investments Limited(formerly Ecap Equitizy)

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

E€L Finanee Limnitad

Ecap Equities Lamited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited)
ECAP Sceuritics and Tnycatmenis Limited{fornrcely Eeap Equities)

Edelweiss Raral & Corgorate Services Limited
ECL Finanze Limited
Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited}

ECL Fmance Limited
LLELWEISS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED)
Edcl Finance Company Limited

ECL Finanee Lintited
Nide Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edglweiss Hovging Finance Limited)
Edel Finance Company Limited

Ed<l Finance Campany Libnited
EDELWEISS LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED)

Edehweiss Rural & Carporate Services Limited
ECL Finuce Limited
Egap Equites Limited(Formerly knows as Edel Land Limited)

ECL Finance Limited

ECL Finenee Linnited .
Nido Home Finance Limited {Formerty known as Edelwerss Housing Finance Limsted)
Edel Finance Company Limited

Nido Home Finance Limsted (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Edehweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

ECL Finance Limited

Edehweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Sekura India Management Limited

Edelweiss Finoncial Services Limited

ECL Finance Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limitod

Nido Home Finance Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Edelwoiss Asset Reconstruction Company Litdicd
EARC Trust 8C 251
EARC Trust $C 394

Edelweiss Private Equity Tech Fund
Edelweiss Value & Growih Fund

0.06

2.57

0.70
0.74

1,65
6.73

1013
2,28

017

.38

350.00

.00
0.64

1031
493
1812
24006
14008
7100
0.0
1.80
1510
184
269,45
003
not
0.03
213.14
o
.13
67.26
242

043
11.36

nA3

12.24
LT
01g

[X111)
179.64

165,19
466,80

For the year ended
March 31 2024

060
2267
0.26
493

0.20

049
0.46

0.75
647

2,500.00

1.87

270
458

1031

493
18.13

14000
7100

0.00
130

185
22723

003
3.0t
003

0.00
013

2.1
8246
0.0%
1.85
0.67

0,65

als

@11

1 As part of fund based activities, intergroup company loans and advances are veluminous in nature and carried on at arma’s length and in the ordinary course of business. Purduant ta [nd AS 24 - Related
Party Disclosures, maxatiuzs amourst of loans given and repaid alongwith the transaction volume are disclosed above. Interest income and expensgs on such loans and advances are disclosed on the basis
of full amounts of snch loans and advances giver and repaid.

d abeve excludes p

2 Infermarien relating to

ion paid to key jal person

employees on an overall basis. These are ncluded om cash basis. The variable compensation included berein is on cash basis.

3 The above list contain name of only those related parties with whom the Company has uadertaken transactions for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

made for gratuity, leave encashment, bonus and deferred bonus which are provided for group of




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continuned

(Currency :Indian rupees in millions |

46.
46.1.

46,2,

46.3.

46.4.

46.5.

47.

Leases

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the For the year ended For the year ended
movements March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance as at April 1 6.70 23.92
Additien 0.12 .
Lease pre-closure (0.48) (13.82)
Amortisation for the year 3.11} 13.40)
Balance as at March 31 323 6.70
Set owt below are the carrying amounts of [ease liabilities and the movements

Balance as ai April 1 719 2562
Additions/ reversal (net) 0.12

Interest on lease liabilities 0.53 1.04
Lease pre-closure (0.50) {15.06)
Repayment of lease obligation (3.68) 14.41)
Balance as at March 31 3.66 7.19

Amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 3.11 3.40
Interest expense on lease liabilities 0.53 1.04
Reversal of lease pre-closure (0.02) (1.24)
Rent on Short Term Leases 1.94 1.79
Total 3.55 == 5.00
Total cash outflow for leases:

Cash outflow of long term leases 3.68 4.41
Cash outflow of short term leases 0.68 1.72
Total 4.36 6.13

Details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities, on an undiscounted basis As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024

Less than | year 3.25 4.56
1.3 years 1.40 358
3-5 years * -
Total 4,65 8.14
Cost sharing

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the ultimate holding Company along with feliow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like
common senior management compensation cost, Group mediclaim, insurance, rent, electricity charges etc. which is for the commen
benefit of itself and iis certain subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries including the Company. This cost s¢ expended is reimbursed by the
Company on the basis of number of employees, time spent by employees of other Companies, actual identifications ete. On the same
lines, employees’ costs expended (if any) by the Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries is recovered by the Company.
Accordingly, and as identified by the management, the expenditure heads in note 37 include reimbursements (received)/paid and are
net of reimbursements paid/(received). Based on the management’s best estimate, Rs. 43.12 million was paid (net ol reimbursements
recerved) during the year (Previous year Rs. 33.66 million).
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48,
(a)

(b}

Risk Management

Introduction and risk profile

Risk is an integral element of the Company's operations. When the Company extends a corporate or retail loan, buys eor sells securities in
market, or offers other products or services, the Cornpany takes on some degree of risk. Risk management is the precess of identifving,
assessing, and prioritizing risks fellowed by a coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor, and control the likelihood or impact of unforeseen
events. Tt outiings the specific risks the organization faces, their potential impact, and the likelihood of their occurrence.

The Company follows following for effective risk management:

1} Acceptance of responsibility, including identification and escalation of risk issues, by all individuals within the Company;
2) Ownership of risk identification, assessment, dafa and management within each of the lines of business and Corporate; and
3) Firmwide structures for risk governance

By understanding its risk prefile, an organization can make informed decisions, allocate resources effectively, and implement appropriate risk
management strategies to pretect its assets, reputation, and long-term viability.

Risk Management Structure

We have a well-defined risk management policy framework for risk identification, assessment and control to effectively manage risks
associated with the vanous business activities. The risk function is monitored primarily by the business risk group.

QOur risk management policy ensures that the margin requirements are conservative to be able to withstand market volatility and scenarios of
sharply declining prices. As a resuli, we follow conservative lending norms. The Group centralises the risk monitoring systems to monitor our
client's eredit exposure which is in addition to the monitoring undertaken by the respective busmesses.

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The board has established the Risk Management Committee, which is respoasible for developing and monitoring the Company’s
risk management pelicies. The Committee holds regular meetings and report to board on its activities. This siructure typically outlines roles,
respongibilities, processes, and tools to ensure effective risk management.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk managerent policies and procedures, and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Cempany. Conducting audits, evaluating the
effectiveness of risk management strategies, and identifying areas for improvement. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by
internal audit. internal andit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the audit committee.

Risk mitigation and risk culture

The Company's business processes are designed to ensure fitll independence of functions and a clear segregation of responsibilities. Our credit
appraisal and credit control processes, along with a centralized operations unit and an independent audit unit, provide comprehensive checks
to ensure compliance with established policies and approve loans at the transaction level. Additionally, our risk management processes and
policies include multiple layers of verification and oversight. The head of our business or operations regularly monitors these key processes.
Furthermore, our loan approval, administration, collection, and enforcement precedures are specifically designed to minimize delinguencies
and maximize recoveries.

At all levels of the Company’s operations, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared and distributed in order to ensure that all business
divisions have access to extensive, necessary and up—to—date information. The risk mitigation involves minimizing the effects of risks to an
acceptable level, ensuring the organization can continue to operate smoothly despite uncertainties. Effective risk mitigation helps protect an
organizahion’ s asscts, reputation, and long-term success.

It is the Company's policy that a monthly / quarterly briefing is given to the Beard of Directors and all other relevant members of the Company
in the urilisation of market limits, proprictary investments and Hquidity, plus any other risk developments.

1t is the Company's policy to ensure that a robust risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture, Emplovees are expected to take
ownership and be accountable for the nisks the Company is exposed to. 1t is integral to the Company’s policy that every emplovee understands
the risks the business is exposed to, both in their specific role and within the breader context of the organization’s operations. The Company's
continuous training and development emphasises ¢hat employees are made aware of the Company's risk appetite and they are supported in
their roles and responsibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within the Company's risk appetite limits. Compliance breaches and
internal audit findings are imporiant elements of employees’ annual ratings and remuneration reviews.




(d)  Types of Risks

The Company's risks are generally categorized in the following risk types:

Risk

E?[l;s-urEArisin [ from

Measurement

Management of risk ]

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the possibility of a loss
resulting from a borrower’s failure to
repay a loan or meet their financial
obligations as per the agreed terms, Tt
refers to the risk that a borrower or
counterparty may default on their
debw, either by failing to make
scheduled payments or by not
fulfilling other contractual obligatiors,
leading to financial losses for the
lender or investor.

Arises principally from financing,
dealing in Corporate Bonds,
Imvestments in Mutnal Fund, Equity,
but also from certain other producis
| such as guarantees and derivatives

1) Measured as the amount that could be
lost if a customer or counterparty fails to
nake repayments; .

2) Monitoring indicators that nright signal
an increased likelihood of default. These
can include a decline in credit ratings,
payment delays, changes in macroeconomic
conditions, or negative news about a
borrower’s financial performance.

3} Menitored using various internal risk
management measures and within limits
approved by individuals within a framework
of delegated authorities; and

4) Managed through a robust risk control
framewerk, which outlines ¢lear and
\consistent policies, principlies and guidance
I|f01' risk Tnanagers.

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that we do
not have sufficient financial resources
to meet our obligations as they fall
due or that we can only do so at an
excessive cost.

Liquidity risk arises from mismatches
in the timing of cash flows.

Arises from disruptions in financial
markets, such as market crashes or
credit freezes, which can reduce the
availability of financing er the ability
to sefl assets.

Relying on a limited number of
funding sources increases liquidity
risk.

Arises when illiquid asset positions
cannot be funded at the expected
Iterms and when required.

1) Measured using a range of metries,
including Asset Liability mismatch, Debt
Equity Ratio, Current ratio, Quick Ratio,
Cash ratio.

2} Measures the difference between
available liquid assets and short-term
liabilities, helping identify potential
liquidity shortages.

Regular monitoring of funding levels o
ensure to meet the requirement for Business
and maturity of our lighilities

4} Maintain diverse sources of funding and
liquid assets to facilitate flexibility in
meeting our liquidity requirements of the
Company 5) Maintaining a buffer of
liquid assets {such as cash or marketable
securities} to ensure the company can meet
its short-term obligatiens without resorting
to debt. &} Conducting
regular audits of liquidity management
|practices and reviewing policies to ensure
alighment with best practices and regulatory
[requirements. |

3}

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that
movements in market faciors, such as
Interest rates, equity prices and Index
prices, will reduce our income or the

value of our portfolios

Exposure to market risic is
separated into tweo portfolios: ading
and non-trading.

Changes in stock prices can affect
investments and portfolios that are
exposed to the equity market.

Rising inflation erodes the purchasing
power of money, affecting both costs
and returns on investments.

Fluctuations in interest rates can
negatively affect the value of fixed-
income securities

1} Measured using sensitivities, detailed
picture of potential gains and losses for a
[range of market movemenis and scenarios.
2) Create stress testing tools which
simulates extreme market scenarios (e.g.,
sharp interest rate hikes, economic crashes)
to assess the portfolio's response.

3} Utilizes financial instruments to offset
potential losses from market movements.
4} Monitered using measures, inciuding the
sensitivity of net interest incomme.

5} Managed using risk limits approved by
the risk management committee
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49.1. Credit Risk

(a)

(b)

©

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty te a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations. |t arises when a counterparty defaults on a payment, whether it’s interest or principal, or if the value of
collateral backing the loan declines. The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with ereditwerthy counterparties and obtains
sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaulis. In case the loans are to be
restructured, similar credit assessment process is followed by the Company.

Credit risk can arise from various sources, including borrower default, credit rating downgrades, a decline in collateral value,
concentration of exposure to a single borrower or sector, ecenomic downturns, and counterparty tisk in derivative contracts.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management
alse considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country
in which cnstomers operate,

The Company manages and controls credit sisk by setting limits on the amoumt of risk it is willing to accept for individual
ceunterparties/Groups (Single Berrowing Limit/Group Borrowing Limit} and for industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures
in relation to such limits.

To measure eredit risk, the Company employs a variety of tools and medels. These include credit scoring, which assesses the
likelihood of borrower default, and credit ratings from recognized agencies to evaluate the creditworthiness of borrowers. Key metrics
such as Probability of Default {PD), Loss Given Defauli (LGDY), and Expesure at Default (EAD) are used to assess both the likelihood
of default and the potential sevenity of losses.

Credst quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Company and market
intelligence. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The credit guality review process aims to allow the Company
to assess the potentiai loss as a result of the risks to which it is expoesed and take corrective actiens.

Impairment Assesment:

The Company applies the expected credit loss medsl for recognising impairment loss. The expected credit less allowance is computed
based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The expected credit loss is a product ef exposure at default, probability of default and loss given default, The Company has devised an
internal medel to evaluate the probability of default and loss given default based on the parameters set out in Ind AS. Accordingly, the
loans are classified into various stages as lollows:

Internal rating grade Internal grading description Stages
Performing
High grade 0 dpd and 1 to 30 dpd* Stage 1
Standasd grade 31 to 90 dpd* Stage IT
Credit Impaired
Tndividually impaired NPA* Stage 11

*Excluding non performing asset (NPA)
**Represent loan assels classified as NPA as per the extant RBI guidelines

Expected Credit Loss

Credii loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an enlity in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to teceive (i, all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Expected Credit Loss (ECLJ
computation is not driven by any single methodology, however methodology and approach used must refleet the following:

- An unbiased and probability weighted amount that evaluates a range of possible outcomes

- Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cosi and effort at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future econemic conditions;

- Time value of money

While the time value of money element is currently being factored into ECL measurement while discounting cash flows by the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR), the objective of develeping a macroeconomic model using exogenous macroeconomic variables (MEVs)
is to address the first two requirements. This has been achieved by using the model output to adjust the PD risk component in order to
make it forward looking and probability-weighted.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR

Company considers a financial instrument defaulted, classified as Stage 3 {credit-impaired).for ECL calculations, in all cases when the
borrewer becomes 90 days past due or classified as non performing asset (NPA) as per RBI guidelines. Classification of assets form
stage 1 to stage 2 has been carried out based on SICR criterion. Accounts which are more than 30 days past due have been identified as
accounts where significant increase in credit risk has been observed. These accounts have been classified as Stage 2 assets. When such

i
events occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted and lherefore /'f"f

assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.




(d}

(e)

n

()

(h)

®

Probability of Defanlt

Probability of default (PD} is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. PD estimation process is done based
on historigal internal data available with the Cempany. While arriving at the PD, the Company also ensures that the factors that atfects
the macro economic trends are considered 1o a reasonabie extent, wherever necessary. Company calculaies the 12 month PD by taking
into account the past historical trends of the Loans/pertfolio and its credit performance. Tn ¢ase of assets where there is a significant
increase in credit risk / credit impaired assets, lifetime PD has been applied.

Loss Given Default (LD}

The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the eveni of default, taking into accourt, ameng other attributes, the mitigating
effect of collateral value at the time it is expected to be realised and the time value of money. The Loss Given Default (LGD) has been
computed with workout methodology. Along with acrual recoveries, value of the underlying collateral has been faciored in to estimate
future recoveries in LGD computation. Workout LGD computation invoives the actual recoveries as well as future recoveries {as a part
of the workout process} on & particular facility, as a percentage of balance outstanding at the time of Default/Restructuring. The
assessment of workout LGD was then performed. Principal outstanding sach loan was assessed, which went into the denominator of
the LGD caleulation. LGD computation has been done for each segment and sub-segment separately.

Exposure at Default (EAD)

The amount which the borrower will owe to the portfolio at the time of default-is defined as Exposure at Default (EAD). While the
drawn credit line reflects the explicit exposure for the Company, there might be variable exposure that may increase the EAD. These
exposures are of the nature where the Company provides future commitments, in addition to the current eredit. Therefore, the expesure
will contain beth on and off balance sheet values. The value of exposure is given by the following fermula:

EAD = Drawn Credit Line + Credit Conversion Factor * Undrawn Credit Lipe + Interest Accrual for one vear
Where

Drawn Credit Line = Current outstanding amount

Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) = Expected fuiure drawdown as a proportion of undrawn amozunt

Undrawn Credit Line = Difference between the total amount which the Company has committed and the drawn credit line While the
drawn expesure and limits for the customer are available, the modelling of CCF is required for computing the EAD

Forward looking adjusiments

“A measure of ECL is an unbiased probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes and
using reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.”

To fulfil the above requirement Company has incorporated forward looking information into its measurement of ECL. The objective of
developing 2 macroeconomic model using exogenous macreeconomic variables (MEVs) is to address the requirements of unbiased,
probability weighted outcomes while taking into account current conditions as well as future economic conditions. This will be
achieved by using the model gutput to adjust the PD risk component in order to maks it forward looking and probability-weighted.

Exogenous macroeconomic parameters were used as independent (X)) variables to predict the dependent (Y) variable. The Company
formulates base case view of the foture direction of relevant economic variable as well as a representative range of other possible
forecast scenario. This invelves developing two or more addirional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of

Data sourcing

The Company is expected to obtain reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. Keeping in
mind the above requirement macroeconomic information was aggregated from various research database like RBI database, Economic
Intelligence Unit (EIU), Bloomberg, World Bank, Citi research ete. Beyond 2022 macro-economic variables are forecasted by mean
reverting the values to their long term average. External information includes economic data and forecasts published by governmental
bedies and monetary autherities in the country, supranational organisations such as the OECD and the IMF, and sclected private sector
and academic forecasters.

Probability weighted scenario creations:

To incorporate macroeconemic impact into probability-weighted, each scenario has an associated probability, In order to ensure
consistency across macroeconomic models, these probabilities were caleulated at an overall level for both Retaill and Nen-Retail
pontfotios, censidering the impact of a scenario across different portfolios may differ based on endogencus factors, the probability of a
scenario unfolding is purely exogenous, and hence should not vary.

The Company has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for cach pertfolio of financial instruments and
using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationship between marco-ecoromic variables and credit risk and credit losses.

Predicted relationship between the key indicators and default and loss rates on various porifolios of financial assess have been
developed based on analysing historical data over the past years.
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49.1. Credit Risk
49.1.1. Analysis of risk concentration
The following table shows the risk concentration by industry for the components of the balance sheet.

Additienal disclosures for eredit quality and the maximum exposure for credit risk per categories based
un the Company’s intemal credit assessment system and year-end stage classification are further

disclosed in Note 11.

Industry analysis
As at March 31, 2025 Flnal-lual Retail Construction Wholesale Total
services

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent 975.62 - - 975.62
and other bank balances

Trade receivables 13.27 - - . 13.27

Loans 350.34 1,675.96 - 1,148.81 3,175.31

Tnvestments 4,876.85 - - 179.64 5,056.49

Other financial assets 13.28 - - - 13.28

6,229.56 1,675.96 1,328.44 9,233.97
Loan Commitments - - - -
Total 6.229.56  1.675.96 - 1.328.44  9.233.97
As at March 31, 2024 Financial Retail  Construction Wholessle  Total
services

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent 460.17 - - 460.17
and other bank balances

Trade receivables (.69 - - - 0.69
Loans - 3,174.58 - 3,968.36 7,172.94
Investments 67542 1,543.92 - . 2,219.34
Other financial assets 18.23 18.23

1,154.51 4,718.50 - 3,998.36 9,871.37

Loan Comimitments - looos - - 100.06
Total 1.154.51 4 818.55 - 3.998.36 9 971.43

o
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49.1.

Credit Risk

49.1.2. Collateral held and other credit enhancements

(a)

L]

The tables on the following pages show the maximmun exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset along with
details of principal type of collateral: "
Maximum exposure to credit risk (carrying Principal type of collateral
amount before ECL)
As at Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial assets
Loans (at amortised cost)
(i) Retail loans 1,537.03 2,467.52 Property
(ii) Wholesale loans 1,174.98 1,034.55 Property
Total (A) 2,712.01 3,502.07
Loan commitments 100.06 Property
Total (B) - 100.06
Total (A + B} 2,712.01 3.602.12
Financial asscts that are stage 3 and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential losses are given below:

As at March 31, 2025

Maximum exposure (v Associated ECL Carrying amount  Fair value of
credit risk (carrying collateral
ameonnt before ECL)

Financial assets

Loans (at amortised cost)

(i) Retail loans 108.47 39,49 68.98 207.43
(ii} Wheolesale loans - - - -
Total (A) 10847 39.49 68.98 207.43
Loan commitments - - -
Total (B) - - -
Total (A + B) ~ 108.47 39.49 68.98 207.43
As at March 31 2024

Financial assets

Loans (at amortised cost)

(i) Retail loans 162.92 55.07 107.86 250.82
{i1) Wholesale loans - -

Total {A) 162.92 5507 147.86 250.82
Loan commitments - -

Total (B} - -

Total (A + B) 162.92 55.07 107.86 250.82
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49.1.

49.1.3.

49.1.4.

Credit Risk

Overview of modified and forborne loans

The table below includes assets that were modified and, therefore, treated as forborme during the vear, with

the related modification gain / (loss) suffered by the Company.

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2025

Amortised costs of financizl agsets moditied during the -
Net modification gain / (loss) -

Transfer of financial assets

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

The fellowing tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part
or all of the transferred financial assets do not qualify fer derecognition, together with the associated

As at
March 31, 2025
Securitisations
Carrying amount of transferred assets 779.75
{held as Collateral)
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 747.19
Fair value of assets 521.47
Fair value of associated Habilities 499.69
Net position at FV 21.78

As at
March 31, 2024

750.29

806.90
487.09
806.90

30.19
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49.2, Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty 1n meeting obligations associaied with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company might be untable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due as a result of
mismatehes in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstance:.

The company has financing arrangement from banks/ financial institutions in form of committed credit lines.

49,21, Analysis of non-derivative financial assets and Liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

As at Mareh 31, 2025 On 1t014 15daysto 1 monthto2 2 monthste3 3 monthsto 6 monthste 1yearto3 JFyearstoS Over§ Total
demand days 1 month months months 6 months 1 year years years years

A, Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalent and other
bank balances 27232 - - 103.30 - - 975.62
Trade receivables - - - 13.27 - - - - - 13.27
Loans 29.15 140 27.23 35.66 46.76 107.78 588.38 244 17 1,411.44 218.99 3,310,979
Investments - - 1.32 - 16.78 25.32 8.71 3.654.07 577.80 771250 5,056.49
Other financial assets - - 4.1F - - - - 9.17 - 13.28
‘L'otal undiscounted financial
e 901,47 1.40 32.68 48.93 63.54 133,10 70038  3,907.41  1,989.24  1,59149  9,369.65
B. Financial Liabilities;
‘Trade payables - 60 88 - - - 60.38
Debt securities 3.09 13.94 17.02 3349 532.68 892.33 - 1,492.59
Borrowings (other than debt
securitics ) - - 65.67 - - - 65.67
Subordinated financial liahilities - - - 165.89 59531 £,2405.00 450.00  2,451.19
Other financial liabilitles - 134.77 5.67 5.67 17.40 3503 127.85 18,71 211.41 706.50
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities - 3.09 184.77 66.54 85,27 34,43 23440 1,25584  2,251.09 661.41 4,776.34
Net financial assets /

901.47 (1.6%9) (152.09) (17.61}) (21.74) 98.68 46598  2,651.58 (261.85) 930,09 4,592.82

(liabilities)

Note - The company has financing arrangement from banks/ financial institutions in form of committed credit lines. Undrawn committed credit lines as at March 31, 2025 is Nill.
49.2.2, The table below shows the expected maturity of the Company’s loan commitments

Undrawn loan commitments - - - - - - - -

Total - - . . - - . - . -

e Mg M,




On lio 14 [ISdaysto]l Imonthto2 2monthsto3 3monthsto 6 6 monthsto [yearte3 3 yearsto 3

Asat March 31, 2024 Over § years Total

demand days month months manths months 1 year years years

A. Fmancial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalent and other
bank balances 357.94 - - . - 102.23 : 460.17
Securities held for trading - - - - . . . -
Trade receivables - - 469 - - - - - - 0.4
Loans - 34.19 179.11 76.42 516.75 247.40 3,055.68 1,329.54 1,691.77 1,969 81 9,160.67
Investments - - 0.00 5.09 18.11 52.53 1,286.96 183.21 673.43 221934
Other financial assets 807 0.06 16, ER - 18.23
Tetal undiscounted financial assets 357.94 34.19 187.18 77.12 521.85 265.57 3,210.45 2,626.59 1,874.97 2,643.24 11,799.10
B. Financial Liabilities:
Trade payables - - - 177.69 - - - - - - 177.69
Debt securilies - 3.09 - - 13.94 26.08 65.16 64791 892 38 - 1,612.55
Borrowings (other than debt
securities) - 19.21 - 19.09 18.38 53.64 136.31 - : - 269.04
Subordinated financial liabitities - - 17185 1,037.34 1,240.00 450.00 2,899.20
Orher financial kabiliiies - 4.30 385.52 4.89 4.68 67.71 204.25 26.38 0.340 - §97.74
Total yndiscounted financial
fiabilities - 26.60 38552 201.58 37.50 14943 60158 1,671.63 2,132.38 450,00 5.656.22
Net financial assets / (liabilities) 357.94 7.39 (198.33) (124 .47} 484.335 114.14 2,608.87 954.56 (257413 2,193.24 6,142.88

Note - The company has financing arrangement from banks/ financial mstitations in form of committed credit lines. Undrawn committed credit lines as at March 31, 2024 is Nil,
The table below shows the expexted maturity of the Cormpany’s loan commitments
Undrawn loan commitments - . - ; 100.06 - - - - - 100.06
Total 5 : = 100.06 - = - = - 100.06
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49.2. Liquidity Risk

49.2.3. Financial assets available to support future funding

Following table sets out availability of company’s financial assets to support funding

Encumbered Unencumbered Total carrying
As at March 31, 2025 Pledge as  Contractually/ legally  Available as Others amount
collateral restricted assets collateral
Cash and cash equivalent 102.33 - §73.29 - 975.62
in¢luding bank balance
Securities held for trading - - - -
Trade receivables . - 13.27 - 13.27
Loans 1,192.75 667.46 1,216.78 98.32 3,175.31
Investments . 179.64 4,876.85 5,056.49
Property, Plant and Equipment 0.37 - -
(Land) . 0.37
Other financial assets v - 13.28 . 1328
Total assets 1,295.44 847.10 6,993.47 9832 9,234.34
Encumbered Unencumbered Total carryimg
As at March 31, 2024 Pledge as Contractually/ legally  Available as Others ot
cotlateral restricted assets collateral
Cash and cash equivalent
including bank balance 102.23 - 357.94 460.17
Securities held for trad'ing - -
Trade receivables - 0.69 0.69
Loans i,100.51 697.52 5,364.33 10.59 7.172.94
Investments 1,543.92 67542 - 2,21934
Property, Plant and Equipment
{Land} 0.37 - - - 0.37
Oiher financial assets 18.23 - 18.23
Total assets [,.203.12 2,259.67 6,398.38 10.59 9,871.74
Notes -

Represents assets which are not pledged and Group believes it is restricted from using to secure funding for legal or other reason

Represents assets which are not resiricted for use as collateral, but that the group would not consider readily available to secure
funding in the normal course of business




Edelweiss Retail Finance Lintited

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

(Curreney : Indian rupees in millionsy

49.3.

49.3.1

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk associated with the effect of changes in market factors such as interest rates, equity prices, credit spreads or
implied volatilities, on the value of assets and liabilities held resulting in loss of future earnings. The objective of the Company's market
risk management is to manage and control market tisk exposures within accepiable parameters. The Company separates its exposure to
market risks between trading and nen-trading portfolios.

Exposure to market risk - Non trading portfolios

Interest rate risk - The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash
flows or fair values of financial instruments because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally through
monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits for repricing bands.

ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits. ALCO reviews the interest rate gap statement and the mix of floating
and fixed rate assets and liabilities. Balance Sheet Management Unit is in-charge for day fo day management of interest rate risk.

Total market risk exposure

The fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates. The
Company classifies is expoesures to market risk into non—trading portfolios.

Particulais

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent and other

bank balances

Loans

Investments

Trade receivables
Other financial asseis

Total

Financial Liahility

Dbt securities

Borrowings (other than Debt
Securities)

Subordinated Liabilities
Trade pavables

Other Liabilities

Total

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Carrying  Traded risk  Non-traded Carrying Traded riskk ~ Non-traded
amount risk amount risk

975.62 - 975.62 460.17 460,17
3,175.31 - 3,175.31 7,172.94 7,172.94
5,056,49 - 5,056.49 2219.34 221934
13.27 - 13.27 0.69 Q.04
13.28 - 13.28 18.23 18.23
9,233.97 - 9,233,97 2,871.57 9.871.37
1,173.26 - 1,173.26 1,166.41 1,166.41
65,67 - 65.67 254.47 254.47
2,279.94 - 2,279.94 2,233.62 2,233.62
60.88 - 60.38 177.70 177.70
706.50 - 706.50 697.72 697.72
4,286.25 - 4.286.25 4,529.93 4.529.53

Primary risk
sensitivity
Interesi rate

Interest rate
Inierest raie

Interest rate
Interest rate

Interest rate
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49.3. Market Risk

49,32 TInterest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect fiture cash flows of
financial instruments. The sensifivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the assumed
changes in interest rates on the profit or loss for a year, based on the floating rate non—trading financial
assets and financial liabilities held as at year end.

The following table demonsirates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all
other variables being constant} of the Company’s statement of profit and less and equity.

Increase/ Increasein @ Decreasein Increasein  {Decrease) in

For the year ended {Decrease) in  profit after  profit after Equity Equity
basis points tax tax

INR Loans

March 31, 2025 25/(25) 1.10 (1.10) 119 (L10)

March 31, 2024 25/(25) 4.1H (4.16) 4,16 {4.16)

INR Borrowings

March 31, 2025 25/(25) {0.12) 0.12 (0.12) 0.12
March 31, 2024 25/(25) 0.49) 0.49 (0.49) 0.4%
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50.1.

A.

Fair Value measurement:
Valuation principles

Fair value is the price that wouid be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageons} market at the measurement date under eurrent market conditions (ie., an exit priee), regardless of whether that price is directly
obsgervable or estimated using a valuation technique. Ta order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on
a hierarchy of valuaiion techitiques:

Level 1 — valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in aciive markets thai
company can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 — valuation technique using observable inputs:Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly
or indirectly observable market data available over the entive period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 — valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the
measurement as whols.

Refer note 3.11 for more details on fair value hierarchy
Valuation governance framework

The Company's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to ensure appropriate
safeguards are in place to ensure iis quality and adequacy. All new product initiatives (including fheir valuation methodologies) are subject to
approvals by various functions of the Company including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inpirts to models, mdependent price determination or
validation is used. For inactive markets, Company sources alternative market information, with greater weight given to information that is considered
to be more relevant and reliable.

The responstbility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However finance department is also responsible for
establishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting standards.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

As at March 31, 2025 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assefs measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Investment

Corporate Bonds - 4,104 35 - 4,104.35
Fotal financial instruments measured at fair value - A ) - 4,104.35 - 4,104.35
Investment

Security Receipts (SR} - . 179.64 179.64
Total financial instruments measured at fair value- B . - 17964 179.64
Investment

Units of ATF - - 772.50 77250
Total financial instruments measured at fair value - C =. - 772,50 772,50
Total (A+B+() = = 4,104.35 952.14 5,056.49
As at March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recuiring basis

Investment

Corporate Bonds 1.99 - - 1.99
Total financial instroments measured at fair value - A 1.99 - - 1.99
Investment

Seecurity receipts - - 1,543.92 1,543,92
Total financial instruments measured at fair value - B - o - 1,543.92 1,543 92
Investment

Units of AIF - - 673.43 67343
Total finaneial instruments measured at fair value - C - - 673.43 673.43
Total (A+B+C) 1.99 - 2,217.35 2,219.33




Valuation Techniques:

Debt Securities

Whilst most of these instruments are standard fixed rate securities, however nifty linked debentures have embedded derivative characteristics. Fair
value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yields prevailing in the market as at the reporting date. Company has
used quoted price of national stock exchange wherever bonds are traded actively. In cases where debt securities are not activity traded Company hag
usad CRISIL Corporaie Bond Valuer model for measuring fair valee.

Security Receipts

The market for these sceuriies is not active. Investments in SRs issued by ARCs shall be valued pertodically by reckoning the Net Asset Value
(NAV) declared by the ARC and as per RBI guidelines. Securities receipts with significant unobservable valuation inputs are classified as Level 3.

There have been no transfers between levels during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening balances and the closing balances for fair valug measurements in

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Financial year ended March 2025 Security Receipts  Units of ATF Total
Investments - at April 1, 2024 1,543.92 673.43 2,217.35
Purchase 2427 2427
Sale/Redemption proceeds (927.91) (31.57) {959.48)
Profit/(loss) for the year recognised in profit or loss (436.36) 106.36 (330.00)
FV losses under R&R reimbursed by ultimate holding co - - -
Investments - at March 31, 2025 179.64 772.50 952.14
Unrealised gain/(Loss) related to balances held at the end of the year (133.89) 80.13 (33.75)
Finauncial year ended March 2024 Security receipts Units of AIF Tatal
Tovestments - at April 1, 2023 783.61 2,331.80 311540
Purchase 1,614.01 40.75 1.654.76
Sale/Redemiption procecds (835.34) (1,813.90 (2,669.23
Profit for the year recognised in profit or loss (1411 114.78 100.67
F¥ losses under R&R reimbursed by ultimate holding co 15.75 15.75
Investments - at March 31, 2024 1,543.92 - 673.43 2.217.35 =
Unrealised gain/{Loss) related to balances held at the eng of the year (93.9%) 21.28 {72.65)
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30.1. Fair ¥alue measurement:

. EImpact on fair value of level 3 financial instrument of changes to key unobservable inputs
The below table summarises the valuation techniques together with the significant unobservable inputs used io calculate the fair value of the Company’s Level 3 Instrumnents i.e. Securities receipts. The range of values
indicates the highest and lowest level input used in the valuation technique and, as such, only reflects the characteristics of the instruments as opposed to the level of uncertainty te their valnation. Relationships beiween
unobservable inputs have not been incorporated n this summary.

Fair value of Range of estimates

Type of Financial & . Significant unebseryable Ingrease in the Change in fair Drecrease in the Change in fair
asset as om 31 Valuation techniques . for unobservable N .
Instrumients input . ungbservable input value unobservable input value
March 2025 input
5% increase in 5% Decrease in
Secunty Receipis (SR) 179 54 Net Asset Value Method Book Value 293 53 Expected future Cash 1468  Expected future {14.68)
flow Cash flew
Fair value of underlying 5% Inerease i Fair 3% Increase m Fair
| 'nits of All 70 Wet Asser Value Method P 1250 value of Underlying 3862 wvalue of Underlying {38.62)
Invesiment Invesirment
Type of Financial T . . Significant unabservable Range of estimates Increase in the Change in fair Decrease in the Change in fair
asset as on 31 Veluation techniques . for unrobservable N .
Instruments input X unobservable input value wnobservable input value
March 2024 input
5% increase in 5% Decrease in
Secunty Receipis 1,543.92 Net Asset Value Method Bock Value 1,250.02  Expected future Cash 7250 Expested future (72 50)
flow Cash flow
Fair value of underlyin 5% Increase in Fair 5% Increase m Fair
Units of ATF 673.43 Net Asset Value Methed . ying 67343 value of Underlying 3367 value of Underlying {3367}
investments
Investment Invesiment
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50.2.

50.3

Finansial i 1 at fair val

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instraments rnot measured at fair valoe and analysing them by the level in the fair value hievarchy
inio which each fair value measuremeni is categorised.

As on March 31, 2025 Total Carrying Taotal fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Amount

Financial assets

Loans 3,175 31 3,350.61 . - 3,350.61

Total 3,175.31 3.350.61 . - 3,350.61

Financial liabilities

Deebt securities 1,173.26 1,210.43 1,210.43

Subordinated lizbilities 2,279.94 2,287.07 . 2,287.07

Tatal 3453.20  3497.50 . 3,497,.50

As on March 31, /024

Financial assets:

Loans 7,172.94 6,919.42 . . 6,919.42
Total 717294 601942 - 6.919.42
Financial liabilities

Debt securiiies 1,166.41 121239 1,212.39

Suberdinated liabilities 2,233.62 2,249.86 = 2,249 86

Total , 3,400.03 3,462.25 3.462.25

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumpiions wsed to determine fair values for the above financial instrements which are not recorded and
measured at fair value in the Company's financial statetnents. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below
methodelogies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables and, as such, may differ from the techniques and
asstunptions explained in notes.

Short term financial assets and liabilities

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrving amownts are a reasonable
approximation of their fair value. Such instruments include: Trade receivables, trade payables and contract liability without a specific
maturity. Such amounis have been classificd as Level 2 on the basis that no adjustments have been made to the balances in the balance sheet.
Cash and cash equivalent and Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents have been classified as Level 1.

Financial assets at amortised cost

The fair values of financial assets measured at amortised cost are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash
flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties’ credit risk. In ease of floating interest rate
linked leans, since such leans are subject to repricing periodically (less than twelve menths), with the interest rate reflecting current market
price. Hence carrying value of loans is deemed to be equivalent of fair value.

Tssued debt
The fair value of issued debt is estimmated by a discounted cash flow model incorporating the Company's own credit risk.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The fair values of financial liabilities measured af amortised cost are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash
flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields. In case of floating interest rate linked borrowings, since such borrowings are
subject to repricing periodically (Fess than swelve months), with the interest rate reflecting current market price. Hence carrying value of such
borrowings is deemed to be equivalent of fair value.




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

51. Trade receivables

Provision matrix for Trade receivables

Particulars

ECL rate

As at
Marc¢h 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Trade receivables days past
due

Estimated total gross carrving
amount at default

ECL - Simplified approach
Net carrying amount

Estimated total gross camrying
amount at default

ECL - Simplified approach
Net carrying ameunt

more than
1-%0days 91-180 days 181-365 days 365 days Total
0.33% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00%
13.31 - - - 13.31
(0.04) - - - 10.04)
13.27 - - - 13.27
0.21 0.52 0.00 0.62 1.35
(0.00] (0.04) - (0.62) (0.66]
0.21 0.48 - {0.00Y 0.69
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52,  Details of the loan taken from Banks and other parties

Nature of Security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings
All Secured long term borrowings are secured by way of hypothecation of receivables i.¢ loans & advances.

(a) Details of term loan taken from Banks (excluding of Interest accrued on Term loans and FIR impact)

As at March 31 2025

Rate of Inerest I
Month of Maturity/Repayment - 10% >10% Grand Total
March-26 - - =
February-26 - . -
January-26 - - -
December-24 - - -
November-25 - - -
October-25 - - -
September-25 - - -
Angust-25 - -
July-25 - - -
June-25 - - -
May-25 - - -
April-25 _ B - - -
Total - - | -
As at March 31 2024
. Rate of Interest
@) | Month of MaturityRepayment |0 ™1 >10% | Grand Total

March-25 = | 5.00 5.00
February-25 5.00 S0
January-25 - 17.50 17.50
December-24 17.50 17.50
|November-24 . 17.50 17.50
Qctober-24 - 17.50 17.50
|September-24 17.50 17.50
August-24 17.50 17.50
July-24 17.50 17.50
June-24 - 17.50 17.50
May-24 17.50 17.50
Arrii-ad - 17.50 17.50 |
[Total 185.111) 185.00 |
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53

Repayment ferms of Secured/Un-Secured Non-convertible Debentures are as follow:

The debeniures are secured by way of pari passu charge on an immovable property and standard loan assets (o the extent of 100% of the

outstanding amount of the debentures, unkess otherwise stated.

As at March 31 2025

Description of Secured Redeemable Non

Convertible Debentures (NCD) Rate Issne Date Redemption Date
ERFL/Public NCI/Series VI 9.25%  22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2018
ERFL/Public NCD/Series V 8.88%  22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2028
Description of Secured Redeemable Non

Convertible Debentures (NCD)

ERFL/Privatec NCD INES18508076 10.40%  18-Mar-2024 18-Mar-2027
As at March 3§ 2024

Description of Secured Redeemable Non ,
Convertible Debentures (NCD) Rate Issue Date Redemption Date
ERFL/Public NCD/Series VI 9.25%  22-Mar-2018 22-FMar-2028
ERFL/Public NCD/Series V 8.88%  22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2028
Description of Un-Secured Redeemable

Non Convertible Debentures (NCD}

ERFL/Privatec NCD INE528508076 10.40%  18-Mar-2024 18-Mar-2027

*Excluding of Interest acorued and ELR impact

As at March 31 2025

ISIN number Rate Issue Date Redemption Pate
INES28808043 9.25%  06-0ct-2017 06-Oct-2027
TNES28508035 9.25%  31-Jul-2017 31-Jub-2027
INES28808027 9.95% 10-Qct-2016 09-0Oct-2026
INE528508019 11.50%  25-May-2015 26-May-2025
As at March 31 2024

ISTN number Rate Issue Date Redemption Date
TNES528508043 0.25% 06-Oct-2017 06-Oet-2027
INES28508035 9.25% 31-Jul-2087 31-Jul-2027
INE528508027 9.95% 10-Oct-2016 09-Oct-2026
TNES28508019 11.50%  25-May-2013 26-May-2025

*Excluding of Interest accrued and EIR impact

. Repayment terms of Unsecured non-convertible redeemable perpetual debentures are as follow.

As at March 31 2025

ISIN number Rate Issue Date Redemption Date
INES285080511 9.75% 26-Deec-2017 Perpetual
INES28S08068 10.00%  07-Feh-2018 Perpetnal

As at March 31 2024

ISIN nuniber Rate Issue Date Redemption Daie
INE528508650 9.75%  26-Dec-2017 Perpetual
INE528808068 10.00%  07-Feb-Z018 |'erpetual

*Excluding of Interesi accrued and EIR impact

No. of NCDs

4,83,173
4,09,205

3,000

No. of NCDs

483,173
4,09,20%

3,000

. Repayment terms of Unsecureld non-convertible redeemable subordinate debentures are as follow:

No. of NCDs
1,000
240
120
140

No. of NCDs
1,000
240
120
14G

No. of NCDs
200
250

No. of NCDs
200
250

Amount*

483.17
409.21
892.38

300.00

Amount*

483.17
409.21
89238

300,00

Amount*
1,000.00
240.00
120.00
140.00

1,500.00

Amount®
1,000.00
240.00
120 .06
140.00
1.200.00

Amount*
200,00
250.00
450.00

Amount®
206.00
258.00
450010
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56. Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally
imposed capital requirements from its regulators and maintains sirong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and to maximise shareholder value.

(a) The Pillars of its policy are as follows:

a) Maintain diversity of sources of financing and spreading the maturity across tenure buckets in order to minimize hquidity risk.
b) Maintain investment grade ratings for all its liabilities issaances domestically and internationally by ensuring that the financial
strength of their balance sheets are preserved.

¢) Manage financial market risks arising from laterest rate, equity prices and minimise the itmpact of market volatility on earnings.

d) Leverage optimally in order to maximise sharcholder returns while maintainirg strength and flexibility of balance sheet.

This framework is adjusted based on underlying macre-ecenomie factors affecting business environment, financial market
conditions and interest rates environment

(b) Regulatory Capital

The below regulatory eapital is computed in accordance with Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India {Non-Banking Financial
Company —Scale Based Regulation} Directions, 2023 (RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR FIN.REC No.45/03.10.119/2023-24) dated

October 19, 2023,
As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Capital Funds

Commeon Equity Tierl (CET1) capital 1,156,94 3,559.63

Other Tier 2 capital instruments {CET2) 309.14 718.19
Total capital 1,466,08 4,277.82
Risk weighted assets 4,233.56 7,447.09

Tier 1 Capital ratio* 27.33% 47.80%

Tier 2 Capital ratio 7.30% 9.64%
Total Capital ratio* 34.63% 57.44%

*Capital adequacy ratio is reduced ont account of increase in group company exposure and fair valuation imipact of security receipts.
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57.

{i)

(it

(iii)

Other Disclosures

Details of dues to micro enterprise and small enterprise

Trade Payables inclndes Nill amount payable to “Suppliers™ registered under the Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. {Previcus Year ¢.01
million} Interest paid by the company during the vear to “Suppliers” registered under this Act is Nill (Previous vear: 0.02 million}. The aforementioned is based on the
respoises received by the company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act

Disclosnre under regulation 53(0) of SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Particulars

Loans to advances in the nature of loans te subsidiarics
Loans to advances in the nature of loans to associates
Loans to advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested

Investment by the lonee in the share of parents company and subsidiary company, when the
company has made a loans & advances in the nature of loans

ASs :at|1
March 31, 2025

As at
March 21, 2024

Relationship with Struck off Companies

Below are the transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companiés Act, 1856

Name of the struck off company

Nature of fransactions fRelationship with

with struck-off

the Struck off company,
| if any, to be disclosed

Balance outstanding

Balance outstanding as ’
as on March 31, 2025 |on March 31, 2024

Total

Company

MEDIFIT HEALTH & FITNESS PRIVATE L'MITED |Receivables |Nona - -
M.S.CLOTHING | Receivables | None | = 0.24
S M ENTERPRISES | Receivables | None | - 0.05
'GODAVARI TRADERS | Receivables |None | - 0.11
AYUH MEDITECH SOLUTIONS PVT LTD Receivables I_Noni | | 0.07
SRI 8Al SIMHADR! TYRES _Receivables ___None - 0.10

- 0.57
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57. Other Disclosures

{vil) Disclosure of Ratios

Sr. Ne. Eﬂicu]ars March 31,202-5- | March 31,2024

1 Debt-equity Ratig & ™ 1) 0.70| 0.67

2 Debenture redemption reserve (Rupees in Crores) 2.29 229

3 Net werth {Rupees in Crores) ¢ 3 501.59 548.96

4 Net profit after tax (Rupees in Crores) 9.08 14.42
5 Earnings per share {not annnalised) I
5a Basic {Rupees) 1.12 336
5b Diluted (Rupees! 2.12 3.36|
6 Total dehis to total assets ©© ™™ 0.37 0.36

7 Net profit margin {%) "9 8.53% 13.47%

8 Sector specific equivalent ratios

(a} Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio {CRAR) (%) 34.63% 57.44%

(b) Tier 1 CRAR (%) 27.33% 47.80%

(¢) Tier IT CRAR (%) 7.30% 9.64%

(d) Stage 3 ratio (gross) (%a) 3.60% 2.24%

(e) Stage 3 ratio (et} (%) 2.21% 1.47%

9 |Liquidity coverage ratio"** " ” N.A N.A

The compaty being a retail finance cornpany, disclosure of current ratio, long term debt to working capital, Bad debits tis Account receivable ratio, Current

lability ratie, Debtors turtover, liventory twrnover, Operating margin are not applicable.

1.Debt-equity Ratio = Total Debt {Debt Securities + Borrowings (other than debt securities) + Subordinated Liabilities) / Net worthh

2. Net worth = Share eapital + Share application money pending allotment + Reserves & Surplus — Deferred Tax Assets

3. Total debs to total assets = Total Debt / Total assets

4. Net profit margin (%) = Net profit after tax / Revenue from Operations

3. As per RBI guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management Framework, all non-depesit taking NBFCs with asset size of Rs. 5,000 crore shall maimain the
required level of Liguidity coverage ratio (LCR) starting Deeember 1, 2020 in phased manner from 30% to 100% by December 1, 2024, As at March 31,
203235, the Company's asset size is less than Rs. 5,000 crores and hence minimum LCR maintenance is not mandaiory for the Company.
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57,

(viil)

(ix)

(&)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

Other Disclosures
Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
Mo charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period by the company.

Compliance with number of layers of companies

The prevision of this act shall not be applicable as the company is a non-banking financial company as defined in the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 {2 of 1934} which is registered with the Reserve Bank of India and considered as systemically important
non-banking financial company by the Reserve Bank of India as per the exceptions prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the
Act read with Companies {Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premimm:

(A) During the year, the company has not advanced or [oaned or invesied funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(1) directly or indirecily lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i1) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(B) During the year, the Company has nei received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foveign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise} that the Company shall:

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsogver by or on behalf of the
Funding Party(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{ii) provide any guarantes, security or the like to or on behalf of the Uliimate Beneliciaries
Details of Benami Property held

There are no proceedings which have been injtiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder,

Undisclosed income

The Cempany will not hav any transaction which not recorded in the books of accounts that has been sarrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961

Roeunding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million as per the requirements.
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58. Regulatory Disclosures

(Y  Foreign currency
The Company has not undertaken any fereign currency transaction during the year ended March 31, 2025 (Previous year: Rs Nil}.

(ii) Investments

As at|

| . As at]
. N
Sr. No |Particulars March 31, 2025
Value of Investments
(i) |Gross valve of [nvestments
(2) In India 5,056,49 2,219.34
{b) Cutside India
(i)  |Provisions for Depreciation
{a) In India -
{b) Ountside India -
(iii} |Net value of Irivestments
(a) Ins India 5,056.49 221934
{b) Ouiside Indea - .
Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
i/ |Opening balance -
{iij |Add: Provisions made dering the year -
{ii) |Less: Write-0iT/ Written-back of excess provisions during the year -
_idvi  |[Closing balance »
(iii} Derivatives
(a) Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap
S N- Particul N As at/ Asatl
r. No [Particulars Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024|
1 = = — |
(1) |The noticnal principal of swap agreements Nil Nil |
{it) |Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their obligations under the Nil Nil
agreements |
(1) | Collateral required by the applicable NBFC upon entering into swaps Nil Nil
{i¥) |Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps® Nil Nil
() | The fair value of the swa;: book € | L . |
\Note: Nattre and terins of the swaps including informeaiion vr credit and market risk and the accounting policies adopted for recording the swaps |
shoutd also be disclosed,
# Fxamples af concentration could be exposures to particulor indusiries or swaps with highly geared comparies.

|® 1 the svoaps are linked to specific asses. fiabilities, or commtitmens, the fair value wonld be the estimated amoury that the applicable NBFC would

|recelve or pay to terminate the swap agreements ay on the balance sheet date.

{b) Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives

Sr No |Particulars

(i) | Notional principal amount of exchange taded IR derivatives undertaken during the year (mstrameniwise)

| (i} |Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on March 31, 2025 (instrament-wise)

Will | Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective” (instrumeni-wise)

| |
{rv) | Mark-to-market valus of exchange traded IR derivatives owtstanding and not "highly effective” (instrument-wise)

Amount

il
Nil

Nil

Nil
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58. Regulatory Disclosures

{¢) Qualitative Disclosures

The Company has a process whereby periodically all iong tenm contracts are assessed for material forgseenble losses. At the year end, the Company has
reviewed and ensvred that adequate provision as required under any law / accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on such long term eoriracts has
beer made in the books of account, The Company has not entered into any denvative contracts during the year. (Previous year Rs. Nil)

{d) Quantitative Disclosures

Sr.No [Particulars C1frre'nt lnter.est -Rate
| Derivatives Derivatives
(i) |Derivatives (Notienal Principal Amount) Wil Nil
For hedging Nil Nil
{if)] Marked to Market Positions
a) Asset (+) Nil Nil
b Lighility (-} Nil Nil
(itf) |Credit Exposwe Nil Nil
(iv) |Unhedged Exposures Nil NilI
(iv) Asset liability management
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities
As at March 31, 2025 - -
. Advanies . Foreign Currency  Fareign Currency
Bucket:
uckets Depasits (Gr:o_s;s) Investments Borrowings Assets Assets
1 day to 7 days - 29.15 18.79 -
B day to 14 days - 1.40 0.00 - -
15 days to 30431 days {One month) E 2728 132 1139 -
Over 1 month upto 2 months 35.66 - 396.03 - -
Orver 2 months upto 3 months E 46.76 16.78 0.00 -
Orver 3 months upto 6 months . 107.78 2532 14,84 -
Over 6 months upto 1 year - 588.38 871 75,44 . -
Crver 1 year upte 3 years 24417 3,654.07 1,002.38 -
Over 3 years upto 3 years - 141144 577.80 0.00 - -
Over 5 years E 818.9% 772.50 LU -
Total . 3,310,99 5,056.49 3,518.87 — -
As at March 31, 2024
. Advarces . Foreign Currency Foroign Currency
Buckets
Deposits (Gross) Investments Borrowings Assats Agsets
1 day 1o 7 days : 36.90 26.93 -
8 day to 14 days 597 0.17 -
13 days to 30431 days (One month) - 163.06 - 4.63 - -
Over 1 month upto 2 months 48.33 0.00 17.50 -
Over 2 months upto 2 months - 439.55 325 1740 - -
Over 3 months upto 6 months . 169.06 976.84 60.48 -
Over 6 months upto 1 year - 3,000.55 28.82 206.20 * -
Over 1 year upto 3 years 874.37 251.33 738.71
Over 3 years npto 5 years 1,316.47 191,53 2,582.38 - -
Crver 5 years E 1,263.03 767.36 - -
Total - 7.367.28 2,219.34 3,654.51 —— - -
(v) Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR)
A As at] Asat
8r. No [Particulars | March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
() | CRAR (%) I 34.63% $7.44%,
(ii) CRAR - Tier I capital (%) 27.33% 47.80%)
{air) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 7.30% 9.64%
(iv} Amount of subordinated debt owtstanding at end of year: 1,821.18 1,774.74

{Raised during the year: Nil, Previous year Nil)
| ¢Discomnted value of snbordinated debt considered for the purpese of Tier II capital Rs.
520,00 Mn, Previous vear Rs. 820,00 Mn.}
(v} Amount onistanding of perpetual debt instraments 458,76 458.88
{Raised during the year: Nil, Previous year Nily
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58. Regula

tory Disclosures

(vi) Direct assignment & Securitisation

(a) Disclosures in respect of securitisation transactions as required under guidelines on securitization transactions issued by RBI vide circular no. RBI/DOR/2021-
22/85 DOR.STR.REC.53/21.04.177/2021-22 Master Divection - Reserve Bank of India (Securiiisation of Standard Asseis) Directions, 2021 dated September

24, 202

1 (updated as on December 05, 2022y

Sr. No

Particulars

As at-

Asat

1
2
3

5

5

No. of $PVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions
Total amourt of securitised asscts as per books of the SPVs sponsored by the NBFC
Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comiply with MRR. as on the date of belance sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
- First loss
- Others
by On-balance sheet expasures
- First loss
- Others
Arount of exposures to assignment transactrons other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposires
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss
- Others
ii} Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss
- Others
b) On-balance sheet exposures
i} Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss
- Others
i1} Exposure to third party securiisations
- First loss
- Others

Sale consideration received for the securitised assets and gain/loss on sale on account of securitisation

Fornt and quantwn (outstandig value) of services provided by way of, iquidity support, post-
| securitisation asset servicing, etc

IPerfannauce of facility provided. Please provide separately for each facility viz, Cradit enbancement,
Tiquidity sapport, servicing agent 60 etc.
Mentton percent in bracket as of total value of facility provided.
a} Amount paid
| b) Repayment received
¢} Outstanding amourt

Averape default rate of portfolias shserved in the past, Pleass provide breakup separately for cach assei
class L.e. RMBS, Vehicle Loans etc

Amount and number of additional/top wp loan given on same enderlying asset. Please provide breakup
separaiely for cach asset class i.e. RMBS, Vehicle Loans etc

Investor complaints (a) Directly/Indirectly received and: (b) Complaints cuistanding

(b) Disclosures in the netss to the accounts in respeet of assignment transactions

I
Sr. No

March 31, 2025
3

745,93
279.82

84.46
195,36

1,430.73

275.82

March 31. 2024,
3

831.94
48418

84.46
39973

1,667.41

484.18

Particulars

As at
March 31. 2025

As ay
March 31 2024

1 |No. of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for assignment transactions

3
3

4

Total ainount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by the NBFC
Tatal amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of balan¢e sheet
1} Off-balance sheet exposures
- First loss
- Others
b) On-balance sheet exposures
- First foss
- Orhers
Amount of exposures to assigrument transactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss
- Others
ii) Exposure 1o third party securitisations
- First loss
- Others
b} On-balance sheet exposures
i} Expostire to own securitisations
- First loss
- Odhers
iij Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss
- Others

123
1,444.26
408,92

408,92

730
2,221.94
53483

534.83
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58. Regulatory Disclosures
(c} 1) Details of Financial Assets scld to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction during the year

Sr. No |Particulars For the year ended

For the vear ended
March 31, 2024

March 31, 2025
(i} |Ne. of accounts P |
(iiy |Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to 8C / RC -
(iki) |Weighted average residual tenor of the loans transterred -
(iv) |Net book value of loans transterred {at the time of transfer) (in crare) -
(v) |Apgregate consideration -
{(vi} |Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years .

{vii) |Aggregate gain/ {loss) over net book value -

1} Rating details of Security receifits as on March 31. 2025 as below.
SR Trust Name | Current raéing
EARC TRUSTSC - 364 Class B !_RRZ- [75% - 100%) 1

(d) Details of Assignment transactions underiaken during the year

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

Sr. No |Particulars

(i) |No. of accounts i 2
(1) |Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to 8C / RC 492,52
(ifi)  |Aggregate consideration 545,50

(iv) |Weighted Average Maturity {Residual Maturity) {in years) -
v} | Weighted Average Holding Period
{vi) |Retention of beneficial economic interest (MRR) -
(vii) |Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts ransferred in earlier years
{viii) |Coverage of tangible security coverage

{x} |Rating-wise distibution of rated loans Unrated

x1 | Auresate cain / :loss) over net book value 52.98 |

(¢) Details of Securitization ransactions undertaken during the year

For the year ended|
March 31, 2024,

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

[ I . For the year ended
Sr. No |Partlculars March 31, 2025
(i) |No. of accounts 103
(i) |Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold 40,42
{1t} |Aggregare consideration 40,42
(ivy |Weighted Average Maturity {Residual Maturity | 8,10
(v) |Weighted Average Holding Period 2.28
(vi} |Coverage of tangible security coverage 51%
{vi1| |Additional consideration realized n respect of accounts transferred in earlier years -
(viii) |Rating-wise distribution of rated loans Unrated
lix! |Acgresaie pain / loss over net book valae !

515
1,554.90
1,554.90
3.56
0.07
0.71 |

Unrated
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58. Regulatory Disclosures

(vii) Details of non-performing financials assets purchased / sold

A.  Details of Non performing financial assets purchased:

Sr. For the year For the year
No |Particulars ended ended
| March 31, 2025| March 31, 2024
(a) [No. of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
(b) |Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
(a) |Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year Nil Nil
(b) |Apuievate outstanding — Nil| Nl
B.  Details of Non performing financial assets Sold:
|Sr. For the year For the year
No (Particulars ended ended
| March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) | No. of accounts sold Nil Nit
(b) | Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
(c) | Apmepate consideration received Nil Nil
(viii) Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect & exposure to capital market
a) Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect
Sr. Particulars As at Asat
No March 31, 2025| March 31. 2024
A |Direct exposure
(i) |Residential mortgages -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or 750.19 911.24
that is rented
(ii} |Commercial real estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose 1,948.53 2,349.08
commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial
or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc).
Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -
- Residential - -
- Commercial real estate -
B |Indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (WHB) and Housing Finance - -
Companies ([T Cs) 1
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 2,698.71 3,260.32
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58. Regulatory Disclosures

b)E

Sr.
No

D)

ii)

iii)

v)

vi)
vii}
viii)

ix)

X!

xposure to eapital market
Particulars Ayag A
- March 31, 2025| March 31, 2024
direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented - -

mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt

advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for
investment in shares {including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of
equity-oriented mutual funds

advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of
equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security

advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security
other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds
'dees not fully cover the advances

secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and
market makers

loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securitics or on
clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resources

bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues

Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mufual funds

Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading

All exposures to Aliernative Investment Funds: Catezory |

772.50

673.41

Total Exposure to Capital Market

772.50 |

673.43

(i)

Movements in non performing advances:

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of movement of Lross Stagze I1T loans. Net Stage HI and ECL provision

Sr.

Neo Particulars

i) |Net NPAs to net advances (%)

ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a} Opening balance

b) Additions during the year
¢} Reductions during the year
d) Closing balance

iii) |Movement of net NPA

a} Opening balance

b) Additions during the year
¢) Reductions during the year

d) Closing balance

iv) |Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provision on Stage I & II loans)
a) Opening balance

b) Additions during the year

¢} Reductions during the year

d) Closing balance

Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024
221% 1.49%
164.99 158.46
122.20 62.84
(168.10) (56.31)
119.09 164.99
108.35 122.78
116.97 39.96
(153.35) (54.39)
71.97 108.35
506.64 35.68
3.23 22.88
(14,75) (1.92)
47.12 56.64

\J

»”’_"—R

—
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58. Regulatory Disclosures

(x)

(xi)

{xii)

(xii)

(xiv}

(xv}

Details of single borrower limit and group borrower limit exceeded by the Company:

During the year ended 31 Mareh 2025, the Company’s credit exposure fo single borrowers and group borrowers were within the limits prescribed

by the RBI, except exposure to below entity. (Previous year: Nil)
City Gold Edueation Research Limited

The above loans were disbursed within in the limit of Single Borrower Limit (SBL) and Group Borrower Limit (GBL) as defined in Master
Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Finaneial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as amended time to time.
However this was a passive breach in SBL due to reduction of Net Owned Fund of FY 2024 on account of increase in Group exposure.

Unsecured Advances

The company has not taken any charges over the rights,licences,authorisation etc against unsecured loan given to borrowers.

Fraud Reporting

There were no instances of fraud identified and reported during the year (Previous Year Nil} as required in terms of Chapter I paragraph 5 of

Monitoring of frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

Remuneration of Directors

The company has not entered into any transaction with non-executive directors during the year (Previous Year Rs. Nil} except disclosure made in

table below:

Details of transaction with non executives directors

Name of Directors

Mr. Vinod Juneja
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar

Net profit or loss for the period , prior period items and ¢hanges in accounting policy
There are no prior period items (previous year Rs: Nil} and there are no changes in accounting policies during the year.

Details of 'provisions and contingencies’

Break up of 'provisions and contingencies’ shown under the head expenditure
in statement of profit and loss.

(i} Provision for depreciation on investment
(ii) Provision towards NPA (Stage 11 loans}
(1ii) Provision made towards income tax
(iv) Provision for Standard loans (Stage I & I loans)
vl Other provision and continyencies

Nature of transaction " For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2025| March 31, 2024

Sitting fees 0.70 0.49

Siftin: fees .74 0.46
For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2025| March 31. 2024

{9.56) 20.95
24,78 22.40 |
47.90) (50.34)
50.00 -

SN & oo
\""n
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58. Regulatory Disclosures
{(xvi) Draw down from Rescrves

The Company has drawn Rs. Nil (Previous Year Nil) from the debenture redemption reserve and transferred to retained earnings on redemption of
debentures titl March 31, 2025. Further, pursuant to the amendments in the Companies Act, 2013, debenture redemption reserve is not required to be
created for debentures issued by Non-Banking Finance Companies {including Housing Finance Companies) regulated by Reserve Bank of India.

(xvii) Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs

A) Concentration of Deposits (for deposit taking NBFCs) As at Asat
March 31, 2025, March 31. 2024
Total Deposits to twenty largest depositors NA NA
% of Deposits of tweniv laruest dupositors to total Deposit takine NBFC NA NA
B) Concentration of advances As at As at
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 2,333.96 5.245.46
% of advances to twenty largest borrowers 1o total advances 70L49% 71.20%
C) Concentration of exposures (includes Off balance sheet exposure)
Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers 2,333.96 3,345.46
% of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to total Exposure 70.49% 71.58%
D) Concentration of NPAs
Total exposures to top four NPAs 58.97 77.18
E} Intra group exposures As at] As at
March 31, 2025) March 31, 2024
iy  Total amount of intra-group exposures 4,416.22 4,598.47
iiy  Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures 4,416.22 4,598.47
iii}  Percentagze ol intra-group exposures 1o total exposure of the NBFC on borrowers/customers 52.78% 47.47%
¥)  Sector-wise NPAs As at As at
| % of NPAs to total advances in that sector March 31, 2025| March 31. 2024
1 Agriculture & allied activities 0.00% 0.00%
2 MSME 9249% 3.94%
3 Corporate borrowers 0.40% 0.20%
4 Services 2.78% 1.55%
5 Unsecured personal loans 0.00% 0.00%
6 Auto loans 0.00% 0.00%
7 Other personal loans 10.71% 17.15%
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58. Regulatory Disclosures
G) Sector-wise loans breakup

__March 31, 2025

March 31.2024

Total Gross NPAs % of Gross Total Gross NPAs % of Gross
Sectors Exposure* NPAs to total Exposure* NPAs to total
exposure in exposure in
- that sector that sector
1 Agriculture and Allied Activities 17.41 - - 33.20 0.00 0.00
5 Industry (Micro and Small and 2,164,13 77.92 3.60% 3,079.04 77.03 2.50%
medimum and Large)
2.1 Micro and Small 641.58 60.49 9.4% 365.38 60.49 16.6%
22 Medium 47.90 - 0.0% 15.60 - 0.0%
23 Large - - - - - -
24  Others 1,474.65 17.43 1.2% 2,698.05 16.55 0.6%
3 3. Services 1,027.08 28.51 2.78% 3,564.12 55.30 1.55%
31 Transport Operators . - - . - .
3.2  Computer Software - - - . - -
33 Tourism, Hotels and Restaurants 87.63 1.46 - 292.20 - %
34 Shipping 24.07 - - 25.14 - -
3.5 Professional Services 346.40 6.77 2.0% 424,611 - 0.0%
3.6 Trade 92.68 0.15 0.2% 126.21 0.25 0.2%
3.6.1 Whotesale Trade (Other than food P 3.67 - 0.0% 425 - 0.0%
3.6.2 Retail Trade 89.01 0.15 0.2% 121.95 0.25 0.2%
3.7 Commercial Real Estate . - - . -
3.8 Non Banking Fiancials Companies ¢ - - - . -
3.9 Aviation 10.37 - - 22.16 12.15 E
3.10 Other Services 465,92 20.14 4.3% 267371 42.90 1.6%
4. Personal Loans 102.36 12.69 12.4% 690.95 32.69 4.73%
Housing (Including Priority Sector . - - . .
4.1 Housing)
4.2 Consumer Durables - - -
43  Credit Card Outstanding - - -
4.4 Vehicle Loans - - % I
4.5 Education - =
4.6 - - .
Advances against Fixed Deposits
4.7 Advances to Individuals against - - .
share, bonds, ete.
4.8 Loans against gold jewellery - - -
49 Micro finance loans / SHG loans . - - - - -
4.10 Other Retail Loans 102.36 12.69 12.4% 690.95 32.69 4.7%
__§ Others, if any (Please s jlgci [1) - - - - . -
| Total 3.310.97 119.11 3.60%| 7.367.31 165.02 8.79%
*includes on balance sheet and aff-balance sheet exposure
o s\
gl
NG B




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
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(xviii) Customer complaints

1) Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and frem the Offices of Ombudsman

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2025| March 31, 2024
1} Compliants received by the NBF( from its customers
I No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 2 2
2 No. of complaints received during the year 83 42
3 No. of complaints redressed during the year 81 42
3.7 Ofwhich, number of complians rejected by the NBFC - -
4 No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 4 2
5 Number of Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from office of the Omnbudsman 22 8
31 QF3, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman 21 8
5.2 Of 3, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office 1 -
of Ombudsman
5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved afier passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the - -
NBFC
6 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those appealed) - -
2) Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers
Grounds of Number of Number of % increase/ Number of Of 5, number of
complaints complaints complaints decrease in the  complaints complaints
pending at  received number of  pending at the pending beyond
the during the complaints  end of the year 30 days
beginning year received over
of the previous
the year year
1 2 3 4 5 6
FY¥2024-25
CIBIL related 1 29  93%| 2l -
Foreclosure letter related - 8 NA - -
TDS related - 7 NA i = -
EMI related - 6 NA - -
Penal Charves related - 4 NA - -
Others - 1 29 NA 1 -
Total 2 83 98% 4 -
FY2023-24
CIBIL related i5 NA 1
QOthers 27 NA 1
[Total . 42 NA 2
* Grounds of complains are basis on the grounds as specified in Scale Bused Regulations issued by ithe Reserve Bank of India.
——— e




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
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(xix) Details of ratings assigned by credit rating agencies

As at March 31. 2023

(a) |Instrument catepory CRISTL ICRA CARE BRICKWORKS ACUITE
i) . . LI- .
. LI-NCD, LT - LINCD LT - 4 ehy 4nd LT LT-NCD and
Long term instruments Sub Debtand  Sub Debt and Sub Debt Pern-Debt Perpetual Debt
Perp-Debt BLR erp-lie
- CRISIL A+ & ICRA BWR A+ & ACUITE A/Rating
Rating AfStable  AHSumble  CAREASEble b ting Watch watch
Amount 4,990.00 18,276.50 2,120.00 1,500,00 1,000,00
ii)  Short term instruments CPs-ST
Rating CRISIL Al+ NA NA NA NA
Amount 500.00 NA NA NA NA

(b) the migration of ratings during the year are given below:

1 ACUITE placed on rating watch with negative implications on 07th June 2024,
2 BWR revise its long-term rating to BWR A+ from BWR AA- & BWR A from BWR A+/ Placed on rating watch with negative implications
on 07th June 2024,
3 CARE placed on rating waich with negative implications on 06th June 2024.
4 CARE reaffirmed and removed from Rating Watch with Negative Implications; Stable outlook assigned on 1th February 2025.
5 CRISIL placed on rating watch with negative implications on (7th June 2024,
6 CRISIL reatfirmed and removed from rating watch with negative implications; Negative outlook assigned on 27th December 2024,
7 CRISIL revise outlook Negative to Stable on 09th Jan 2023,
8§ ICRA reaffirmed and removed from rating watch with negative implications; Stable outlook assigned on 24th December 2024
{a) AsatMarch 31, 2024 -
Instrument category CRISIL ‘ICRA CARE Brickworks Acuite
LT-NCD,LT- LT-NCD,LT-
i) Long term instruments Sub Debtand  Sub Debt and LT'P;CD ad LT- LT-NCDand Perp- oo 1 Debt
ub Debt Debt
Perp-Tiebt BLR
ICRA
_ & AtPlaedon  CAREASSble o2& AcUTE Arstable
Rating ¢ rating watch egauve
Amount 5,990.00 18,276.50 2,120.00 1,500.00 1,000.00
ii) Short ferm instruments CPs-ST CPs-ST
Rating CRISIL Al+ NA CARE Al NA NA
| Amount _ spon CNA 5,000.00 NA NA
(b) the migration of ratings during the year are given below:
(i) Acuife revise the long term rating A/Stabel from A+/Negative on 04 July 2023,
(i) CARE revise long term rating A+/Negative to A/Stable and short term rating A1+ to Al on 03 lanuary 2024,
(iii) CRISIL revise long term rating A+&A/Stable from AA-&A+/Negative on 18 December 2023,
(iv) ICRA placed on rating watch with negative implications on 2% December 2023,
A
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financizl statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continned}

(Currency : Indian rupecs in millions)

58.

(xxi)

(xxii)
(xxiii)
(xxiv)

(xxv)

{xxvi)

Regulatory Disclosures

Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector — Restructuring of Advances
{as required by RBI guidelines under reference RBI/2018-19/100 DBR.No.BP.BC.18/21.04.048/2018-19 dated January 01, 2019)

Particulars

No of accounts restructured

Amount :Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended|  For the year ended|
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024}
13 21}

301.60 365.60

Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators - Nil (Previous Year - Nily

Detail of financing parents company products -Nil (Previous Year - Nil

Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators - Nil (Previous Year - Nil)

Ownership Overseas Assets (for those with joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad)

Th

ere are no overseas assets owned by the company (Previous vear Nil)

Note to the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial Company

In terms of "AG - Para 31 of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —Scale Based Regutation) Directions, 2023 (RBI/DoR/2023-

24/106 DoR.FIN.REC Ne.45/03.10.119/2023-24) dated QOctober 19, 2023.

Liabilities side:

Particulars

1

(@

Loans and advances availed by NBFC inclusive of interest accrued
thereon but not paid

Debentures:

{other than those falling within the meaning of Pubiic deposit|

ib)
©
@
©
{fy

As

2)

{i} Secured

{ii) Unsecured

Deferred credits

Term loans

Inter-corporate loats and borrowing
Commercial paper

Other toans

(i) Loan from related parties

(ii) Bank overdraft

(iiiy Tnter Corporate Deposits

sets side:

Break up of loans and advances including bills receivables

(other than these incleded in (3} below)

3

(a} Secured
{b) Unsecured

Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and othar asseis counting
towards AFC acitvities

a) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(iy Financial lease
(ity Operating lease

b) Steck on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
(i} Assefs on kirg
(ii) Repossessed assets

¢) Other loans counting towards asset financing Company activities
(1) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(ii) Other loans

Amount outstanding | Amount overdue ]
Asaf As at| Asat Asat)
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024
1,173.26 1,166.41 -
2,279.94 2,233.62 -
- 180,34 -
65.67 7413 -
2,712.01 3,502.07
598,97 3.865.21




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rapees in millions)

58. Regulatory Disclosures

As at As at |

Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

4} Break up of investments
Current investments: {including securities held for trading) |

(a) Quoted:
(i)  Shares: Equity - -
Preference - -
(i}  Debentures and bonds 2.00 1.99

(iti) Units of mutnal funds
(iv) Governmeni securities - .
(v) Others - -

{b) Unquoted:

(i)  Shares: Equity . -
Preference .

(iiy Debentuses and bonds 4,102,35 -

(iii}  Units of mutual funds -

{iv) Govemment securitics - N

{v} Others (pass through certificates) = -

Long-term investments (net of provision)

(a) Quoted:
(i) Shares: Equity . -
Preference -

(ti) Debentures and bonds - -

(iii)  Units of mutual funds . -

(iv) Government securities - -

(v} Others . -

(b} Unquoted:
(i)  Shares: Equity - -
Preference - -

(1i} Debeniures and bonds -

(iinr  Units of mutual funds -

{iv) Government securities -

(v} Others : Pass through certificates - -
Security receipis 179.64 1,543.92

Units of Alternative Investments Fund (AIF) T72.50 673.43

5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in(2) and (3} ahove

Amount net of provisions
Se_l;ured | Unsecured | Total
As at Asat As at Asat As at Asat
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024 March 31. 2025 March 3t, 2024 March 31,2025 March 31, 2024,

Particalars

1. Related parties**
{a) Subsidiaries - - - - "
(b) Companies in the sawe group - : 350.54 251525 350.54 2,515.25
(c¢) Other related parties - : - - - .

2. Other than related parties 2,596.95 3,376.89 227.82 1,280.82 2,824.77 4,657.69
[Total 2,596.95 3,376.89 578,37 3,376.8% 3,17531 | 717294
6) Envesior group-wise classification of all investtents (current and long-term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted)
Market value/break up or fair value or Book value
Particulars NAY = _|met of provisions) )
As at As at As at As at
March 31. 2025 March 31 2024 March 31,2025 | March 31,2024 |
1) Related parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - -
(b) Companies in the same group 4,915.98 2,082.42 491598 2,082.42
(c) Other related pattics - - -
2) Other than related parties 140.51 136.92 140.51 136.92
Total 5,056.49 | 2,219.34 5,056.49 2,219.34




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

{Curvency : Indian rupees in millions}

58, Regulatory Disclosures

73 Other information

- Particulars

'E Gross non-performing assets
1) Related parties
2y Other than related parties

{b) |Met non-performing assets
1) Related parties
2) Other than related parties

(¢} |Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

As as
March 31. 2025

115.09

7197

As at
March 31, 2024

165.02

10838

{xxvii) Disclosure on perpetual debt

| Far the year

|Particulars ended For the year ended

| March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024

IAmount of funds raised threugh Perpetual debt Nil Nil

instrument during the year

— FeIT s ~asd]
Aftiewals March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Principal amount outstanding as at year end. 450,00 450.00

Percentage of the amount of Perpetual debt of the 38.90% 12.64%)|

amount of its Tier T Capital

Unpaid interest on Peipetual debt

(xxviii) There are no amount dire and ouistanding to be credited to investor education & protection Fund as at March 31, 2025 and at March 31, 2024

{(xxix} OfF balane sheet SPV sponsored -NIL (Previous vear NIL|
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in miltions)

(xxxi) Disclesure on liguidity risk

a)

b)

c)

d)

€)

In the terms of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation} Directions, 2023 issued vide
Master Direction RBI/DoR2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.No.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October 19. 2023 (Updated as on Febuary 27, 2025).

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both depesits and borrowings} As at
March 31, 2025
Number of significant counterparties* 11
Amount of borrowings from significant counterparties 2,208.67
% of Total deposits NA
% of Total liabilities** 50.70%

* “Significant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than
1% of the NBFC-NDSI's total liabilities

** “Total liabilities ” refers to total external liabitities (i.e. excluding total equity).

Top 20 large deposits

The Company being a Sysiemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India, does not
accept public deposits.

Top 10 Borrowings As at
March 31, 2025
Amount of Borrowings from top 10 lenders 2,158.67
% of Total Borrowings 61.35%
Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product® As at March 31, 2025
Amount % of Total Liabilities**
Market Borrowings
Non Convertible Debentures 1,173.26 26.93%
Perpetual and Sub-ordinated Debentures 2,279.94 52.34%

Other Borrowings
Cash Credit Lines 65.67 1L.51%

* "significant instrument/product” is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar instruments/products which in aggregate amount 1o more
than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's total liabilities.

** “Total liabilities  refers to total exiernal Habilities (i.e. excluding total equity).

Stock Ratios Asat

Mareh 31, 2025
Commercial papers as a % of total public funds* 0.00%
Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities 0.00%
Commercial papers as a % of total assets 0.00%
Non-convertible debentures {original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds 0.00%
Non-convertible debentures {original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total liabilities 0.00%
Non-convertible debentures {origmal maturity of less than one year) as a % of total assets 0.00%
Other short-term liabilities**, if any as a % of total public funds 5.84%
Other short-term liabilities**, if any as a % of total liabilities 4.72%
Other short-term liabilities**, if any as a % of total assets 2.17%

* “Total public funds™ refers to the aggregate of Debt securities, Borrowing other than debt securities and Subordinated habilities.
** “Onher short-term ligbilities™ refers to the borrowing in short term in nature..




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

f)

59.

6.

61,

Institational set-up for liquidity risk management

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Asset Liability Management Commiitee and the Risk Management Committee.
The Asset Liability Management Commitiee, inter alia

= Implement and administer guidelines on Asset-Liability Management approved by the Board and its revision, if any;

= Monitor the asset liability gap and overcome the asset-liability mismatches, interest risk exposure, efic.; Strategize action to mitigate risk associated
with the asset liability gap;

* Develop risk policies and procedures and verify adherence to various risk parameters and prudential limits; review the risk monitoring system and
ensure effective risk management; and

» Ensure that the credit and invesiment exposure to any party / Company / group of parties or companies does not exceed the internally set limits as well
as statutory limits as prescribed by Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

» Company has a Liguidity Contingency Policy in place 1o ensure various liquidity paremeters are defined and tracked regularly. Liquidity Management
Team is provided with update on expected liquidity shortfalls in Normal as well as Stress scenario.

* the Company has ensured maintenance of a Liquidity Cushion in the form of Mutual Funds and liquid fixed deposits with banks, etc. These assets
carry minimal credit risk and can be liquidated in a very short period of time. A comfertable liquidity cushion is maintained of the borrowings. These
would be to take care of immediate obligations while continuing to honour our commitments as a going concern.

* There are available lines of credit from banks which are drawable on notice which further augment the available sources of funds.
Breach of covenant

During the financial year ending as on 31 March 20285, there is no incidence of breach of covenant.

Unhedged foreign eurrency exposure

There is no any unhedged foreign foreign currency exposure as on 31 March 2025 (Previous vear Nil).

Drivergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

No inspection was carried out for FY2023-24 during the year 2024-25.
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

63. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conform o current year presentation.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Chirag R. Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

2 L
per Chirag R. Shah }; o Asnani Sunil Phatarphekar
Partner G Director Director
Membership ro; 106139 . ‘?EDAC_W DIN: 09774021 DIN: 00005164
) .
/4 b .
Vi
: Hitesh Bhadada Reema Shah
Place : Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date : 2nd May 2025 FSC -9052



